
Y Pwyllgor Menter a Busnes

Lleoliad:
Ystafell Bwyllgora 1 - Y Senedd

Dyddiad:
Dydd Mercher, 1 Gorffennaf 2015 

Amser:
09.15

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth, cysylltwch a: 
Gareth Price
Clerc y Pwyllgor
0300 200 6565
SeneddBusnes@Cynulliad.Cymru 

Agenda

Rhag-gyfarfod preifat (09.15-09.30)

1 Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau a dirprwyon  

2 Colli swyddi ar raddfa fawr (09.30-10.15) (Tudalennau 1 - 30) 
Mark Gully, Uwch Reolwr AD, TATA Steel
Huw Mathias, Uwch Reolwr AD, TATA Steel

Dogfennau atodol:
Y Briff Ymchwil
EBC(4)-17-15 p.1a Cyflwyniad ysgrifenedig gan TATA Steel (Saesneg yn unig)
EBC(4)-17-15 p.1 Cyflwyniad ysgrifenedig gan Murco - Gwerthusiad o broses cau ac 
ymdrin â diswyddiadau ym Mhurfa Olew Murco yn Aberdaugleddau (Saesneg yn unig)
EBC(4)-17-15 p.2 Murco – Dadansoddiad ystadegol (Saesneg yn unig)



Egwyl (10.15-10.25)

3 Colli swyddi ar raddfa fawr (10.25-11.10) (Tudalennau 31 - 36) 
Susan Lewis, Trefnydd Rhanbarthol, Undeb Community
Andy Richards, Ysgrifennydd Rhanbarthol, Undeb Unite
Hannah Blythyn, Pennaeth Gwleidyddol, Polisi a Strategaeth, Undeb Unite

Dogfennau atodol:
EBC(4)-17-15 p.3 Undeb Community (Saesneg yn unig)
EBC(4)-17-15 p.4 Undeb Unite (Saesneg yn unig)

4 Colli swyddi ar raddfa fawr (11.10-11.50) (Tudalennau 37 - 41) 
Edwina Hart AC, Gweinidog yr Economi, Gwyddoniaeth a Thrafnidiaeth
Tracey Burke, Cyfarwyddwr, Strategaeth
Gwenllian Roberts, Dirprwy Gyfarwyddwr, Ynni a’r Amgylchedd ac Ymgysylltu 
Rhanbarthol

Dogfennau atodol:
EBC(4)-17-15 p.5 Cyflwyniad gan Lywodraeth Cymru

5 Colli swyddi ar raddfa fawr (11.50-12.30)  
Julie James, y Dirprwy Weinidog Sgiliau a Thechnoleg.
Nigel Arnold, Pennaeth Cyflenwi Rhaglenni, Llywodraeth Cymru
Huw Morris, Cyfarwyddwr, Grŵp Sgiliau, Addysg Uwch a Dysgu Gydol Oes (SHELL), 
Llywodraeth Cymru

6 Papurau  i’w nodi 

6.1 Buddsoddi ar y Cyd mewn Sgiliau  (Tudalennau 42 - 46) 

Dogfennau atodol:
EBC(4)-17-15 p.6 Y Dirprwy Weinidog Sgiliau a Thechnoleg - camau gweithredu yn 
dilyn y cyfarfod ar 11 Mehefin
EBC(4)-17-15 p.7 Comisiwn y DU dros Gyflogaeth a Sgiliau, Adroddiad Cymru 2013 
a ddarparwyd gan y Dirprwy Weinidog Sgiliau a Thechnoleg



6.2 Polisi Ardrethi Busnes - Gwybodaeth a ddarparwyd gan yr Association of Town 
and City Management  (Tudalennau 47 - 84) 

Dogfennau atodol:
EBC(4)-17-15 p.8 Ymateb yr Association of Town and City Management i 
ymgynghoriad Trysorlys ei Mawrhydi ar yr adolygiad o ardrethi busnes

7 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42 i benderfynu gwahardd y cyhoedd o 
weddill y cyfarfod.  

8 Blaenraglen Waith ar gyfer yr hydref (12.30-12.40) (Tudalennau 85 - 89)

Dogfennau atodol:
Blaenraglen Waith yr Hydref gyda Chyflwyniad

9 Ymchwiliad i’r Seilwaith Rheilffyrdd yng Nghymru -  Papur Cwmpasu 
(12.40-12.45) (Tudalennau 90 - 94)

Dogfennau atodol:
Ymchwiliad i’r Seilwaith Rheilffyrdd yng Nghymru -  Papur Cwmpasu 
(Saesneg yn unig)

Ôl-drafodaeth  breifat (12.45-12.50)











 1 

          
   
 

 
Overview 

 

Unite Wales is most strongly in a position to reflect on the role that Welsh Government has played in 

mitigating the impact of large scale job losses rather than that of the UK Government, however we 

understand from experience across the union that the Welsh Government is much more pro-active in 

stepping in to assist – both when job losses are imminent and also to prevent such losses when they 

could be on the horizon – than the UK Government traditionally is or has been. 

 

The union is supportive of such schemes as REACT and PRO-ACT as well as vital and innovative 

initiatives such as the Employer Support Grant which was established to help employers in Wales 

support former Remploy workers into further employment. We recognise that much of these 

initiatives and other excellent programmes such as Jobs Growth Wales are made possible by access 

to European Funding. It is therefore absolutely imperative to Welsh employment and the Welsh 

economy that we remain a part of the European Union. 

 

We firmly believe that there is a case for Welsh Government support in stepping in to both alleviate 

and prevent job losses where possible but that this should always be done in the Welsh spirit of 

social partnership in co-operation with the trade unions, employers and other relevant organisations. 

Such partnership working is of course key to perhaps preventing getting to a situation where large 

scale job losses are on the cards. 

 

 

An example case 

 

Unite was significantly involved with efforts firstly to try and safe MURCO Milford Haven and then, 

latterly to mitigate the impact of job losses at one of the most significant employers in the region. We 

believe the points made in respect of this case specifically are broadly reflective of the union’s views 

on the Welsh Government’s approach to mitigating the impact of large scale job losses. 

 

Given the high profile nature of the closure of the MURCO refinery much of the assistance provided is 

well documented but those closely involved from Unite are firm in the belief that the assistance the 

workforce and our members received in this case was outstanding and it is difficult to imagine what 

more could have been done.  

 

The speedy visit to the site by the First Minister when closure looked a reality was a key and 

extremely well received response. This was closely followed by the setting up of the ministerial 

taskforce under the direction of Economy Minister Edwina Hart AM. This could not have 

demonstrated more to the workforce that they had the whole hearted support of their Welsh 

Government and helped boost morale when it was at a significant low. The role the union had with 

both the visit and the taskforce also reiterated the importance of the role and relevance of the trade 

unions working in partnership as well as reassuring workers that their voice was being heard in the 

process. 

 

 
The effectiveness of the Welsh Government’s 

approach to mitigating the impact of large 

scale job losses 

 

Unite Wales Briefing ahead of Enterprise and 

Business Committee Meeting 
 
 



 2 

Funding was made immediately available to those at risk of redundancy - the agencies rapidly 

arranged workshops and provided assistance that included practical and digital assistance, for 

example, CV writing and the use of Linkedin for networking. The agencies also worked well together 

to provide workfares where prospective employers were given an opportunity to recruit those facing 

imminent redundancy. 

 

In a move crucial to this case and which could perhaps go overlooked in other instances unless duly 

noted, the agencies also looked at the supply chain and the knock on effect on the local economy 

and the wider impact of the redundancies. 

 

In the early days when a sale looked possible immense effort went into making sure that licences 

and permits were in place, this work was carried out by Welsh Government civil servants who put in a 

tremendous effort to give any potential purchaser the best possible start as a new operator and a 

transition that would be as smooth as possible. Unite understand that the Welsh Government civil 

servants also worked closely with civil servants in Whitehall to ensure that no stone was left unturned 

in order to secure a sale and to make the purchase as attractive as possible. 

 

Due to the efforts of all involved it is believed that most of the contractors that were on site have now 

found alternative work and we understand that nearly two thirds of those employed by the refinery 

are now working in the oil industry, albeit very few of those are now working locally.  

 

If anything were to change in the future then we need to plan sustainably for a diversity of 

employment in each region of Wales to avoid short term dependency on one specific sector of 

employment or major employer. 

 

 

For further information please contact hannah.blythyn@unitetheunion.org  

mailto:hannah.blythyn@unitetheunion.org


PAPUR TYSTIOLAETH YSGRIFENEDIG I'R PWYLLGOR MENTER A BUSNES - 
COLLI SWYDDI AR RADDFA FAWR 

Cyflwyniad

1. Pwrpas y papur hwn yw rhoi tystiolaeth ysgrifenedig i ymchwiliad y Pwyllgor 
Menter a Busnes i Golli Swyddi ar Raddfa Fawr.  

2. Mae twf a swyddi cynaliadwy yn ganolog i'n Rhaglen Lywodraethu, ac rydym 
wedi ei wneud yn glir ein bod yn canolbwyntio ym mhob ffordd ar gefnogi a hybu 
ein heconomi a nodi pob cyfle i helpu busnesau ym mhob ardal o Gymru.  

3. Mae'r posibilrwydd o golli swyddi yn destun pryder bob amser, ac rydym yn 
ceisio cydweithio'n agos â phob cwmni sy'n gorfod gwneud diswyddiadau, i 
liniaru yr effaith ar weithwyr a thrafod yr amrywiol fathau o gymorth sydd ar gael.   

4. Mewn achosion ble y mae cyflogwyr yn ystyried diswyddo 20 neu fwy, mae'n 
ofyniad statudol i hysbysu'r Gwasanaeth Taliadau Diswyddiadau yn yr Adran 
Busnes, Arloesi a Sgiliau (BIS).  Yn eu tro, mae BIS yn hysbysu'r Adran Gwaith 
a Phensiynau.  Mae gwybodaeth am ddiswyddiadau a'r cyfnodau ymgynghori 
statudol yn caniatáu i Lywodraeth Cymru, y Ganolfan Byd Gwaith a Gyrfa Cymru 
ddechrau ar ddull 'Tîm Cymru' o fynd i'r afael â chymorth ar gyfer diswyddiadau.   

5. Darperir gwybodaeth, cyngor ac arweiniad am fudd-daliadau, chwilio am waith, y 
farchnad lafur, cyfleoedd i hyfforddi a rhaglenni sgiliau a chyflogaeth, megis 
ReAct.  Hefyd, ble y bo'n briodol, gellir darparu cymorth penodol pellach, megis 
y gwasanaethau Dechrau Busnes gan Busnes Cymru.   Mae'r dull hwn o weithio 
wedi galluogi gweithwyr sydd mewn perygl o wynebu ddiswyddiadau i dderbyn 
gwybodaeth am y cymorth sydd ar gael ar ddechrau'r broses, ac mae wedi 
sicrhau bod cyn lleied â phosib o weithwyr yn mynd yn ddi-waith yn y tymor hir.  

6. Mae'r astudiaethau achos canlynol yn darparu tystiolaeth o gamau gweithredu 
Llywodraeth Cymru o ran y meysydd y mae'r pwyllgor wedi nodi sydd angen 
craffu arnynt.  

Astudiaeth Achos: Diswyddiadau Bosch

Agorodd ffatri Bosch yng Nghaerdydd ym Misgin, ardal nas cynorthwyir, yn 1991, i 
gynhyrchu cynnyrch eiliadur ar gyfer ceir.  Yn ei anterth, roedd Bosch yn cyflogi 
oddeutu 1,500 o bobl, ond gwelodd y cwmni ostyngiad yn nifer y cwsmeriaid yn 
ystod y dirwasgiad economaidd.  Ym mis Tachwedd 2008, cyhoeddodd y cwmni 
gyfnod ymgynghori o 90 niwrnod, gan gyflwyno rhybudd diswyddiadau gwirfoddol i'r 
gweithlu.  

Bu inni gydweithio'n agos â thîm uwch-reoli'r cwmni i edrych ar bob dull posib o 
gynnig cymorth i ddiogelu dyfodol y safle, a darparwyd portffolio o'r cymorth oedd ar 
gael i'r gweithwyr yr effeithwyd arnynt, drwy ReAct, Canolfan Byd Gwaith a Gyrfa 
Cymru, gan gynnwys cyngor a hyfforddiant gyrfaol unigol, gweithdai, ffeiriau swyddi 
a chymorth ariannol ar gyfer ail-hyfforddi.   

Ar ddiwedd Mawrth 2009, gadawodd 284 aelod staff y cwmni drwy ddiswyddiadau 
gwirfoddol.  Gan bod rhai aelodau staff wedi wedi gadael swyddi gwasanaethu, 
cymerwyd eu lle gan staff gweithgynhyrchu oedd heb wneud cais am ddiswyddiadau 
gwirfoddol.  Cyflwynodd y cwmni gynllun hyfforddi mawr i fynd i'r afael â'r meysydd 
gwaith hynny ble yr oedd angen ail-hyfforddi unigolion.  Darparwyd mwy o gymorth 
ariannol gennym ar gyfer hyn.   



PAPUR TYSTIOLAETH YSGRIFENEDIG I'R PWYLLGOR MENTER A BUSNES - 
COLLI SWYDDI AR RADDFA FAWR 

Parhawyd i drafod yn rheolaidd â thîm Bosch yng Nghaerdydd tra yr oeddent yn 
cymeryd camau i wella effeithlonrwydd y gwaith, gan edrych ar gynnyrch arall posib.  
Fodd bynnag, parhau i ddirywio wnaeth y galw gan gwsmeriaid, ac nid oedd modd 
cynhyrchu cynnyrch arall yn gystadleuol ar y safle.  Arweinodd hyn at Fwrdd Bosch 
yn argymell i'r gwaith cynhyrchu yng Nghaerdydd ddod i ben a'i drosglwyddo i 
Hwngari.  

Cynhaliodd y Prif Weinidog ac yna'r Dirprwy Brif Weinidog nifer o gyfarfodydd gyda 
Bwrdd Bosch a'r uwch-reolwyr mewn ymgais i newid argymhelliad y cwmni i gau y 
gwaith yng Nghaerdydd.  Cafodd y cwmni gynnig cymorth i ddod i benderfyniad 
ynghylch busnes newydd posibl, ond gwrthodwyd hyn gan nad oeddynt wedi dod o 
hyd i gynnyrch a fyddai yn ymarferol yn fasnachol.  Bu iddynt hefyd drafod opsiynau 
ar gyfer y gweithlu a defnyddio'r tir, os nad oedd yn bosib achub y gwaith.  

Roedd uwch-reolwyr Bosch yn awyddus i weithio gyda Llywodraeth Cymru i edrych 
ar unrhyw ddefnydd posibl yn y dyfodol ar gyfer y safle, ac i geisio diogelu swyddi 
ble yn bosib.  Roeddent mewn cysylltiad â'r undebau, y rheolwr cyfrifon lleol, 
Aelodau'r Cynulliad a Gweinidogion drwy gydol y broses i edrych ar bob opsiwn 
posib.    

Pleidleisiodd gweithwyr Bosch i dderbyn pecyn diswyddo gwell a bonws 
teyrngarwch.  Cytunwyd gyda'r gweithwyr ar amserlen i leihau'r gwaith ar y safle.   

Bu inni barhau i weithio gyda'r cwmni a'r Undebau i roi amlinelliad o'r pecynnau sydd  
ar gael ar gyfer y gweithwyr yr effeithir arnynt, i helpu i ddatblygu eu sgiliau a dod o 
hyd i waith arall, drwy ReAct, Canolfan Byd Gwaith, a Gyrfa Cymru gan gynnwys 
cyngor gyrfaoedd a hyfforddiant unigol, gweithdai, ffeiriau swyddi a chymorth 
ariannol ar gyfer ail-hyfforddi.  Cynhaliwyd archwiliad sgiliau o weithwyr Bosch er 
mwyn ceisio paru eu sgiliau â mathau eraill o waith, a chafodd tri o brentisiaid ar eu 
hail flwyddyn le gyda dau gwmni arall yn yr ardal, General Electric a Ford.  Bu inni 
hefyd weithio'n agos â chadwyn gyflenwi Bosch yng Nghaerdydd, i dynnu sylw at y 
ffaith y byddai cyfle i gwmnïau barhau i gyflenwi gweithfeydd Bosch dramor.   

Bu i'r cwmni gau ei waith yn Misgin ar ddiwedd Mehefin 2011, gan arwain at golli 
dros 600 o swyddi.  

Astudiaeth Achos: Diswyddiadau yn Murco

Ein bwriad yw lleihau y swyddi sy'n cael eu colli sy'n gysylltiedig â Phurfa Olew 
Murco a'i gadwyn gyflenwi, yn uniongyrchol neu'n anuniongyrchol, ar unwaith ac yn 
y tymor hwy wrth i gwmnïau eraill deimlo effaith y diswyddiadau.  

Roedd gennym berthynas hirdymor agos â chwmni Murco fel cwmni sy'n Bwysig yn 
Rhanbarthol a chyflogwr amlwg.  Yn dilyn cyhoeddi 404 o ddiswyddiadau, cysylltodd 
y Prif Weinidog â Llywodraeth y DU i gynorthwyo gyda gwerthu'r burfa fel busnes 
gweithredol, a fyddai wedi cadw gweithlu oddeutu yr un maint.  Fodd bynnag, 
methodd y trefniant ar y munud olaf pan dynnodd buddsoddwr preifat yn ôl.  Felly 
sefydlwyd Tasglu Murco o randdeiliaid amlwg ar lefel uchel i ganolbwyntio ar liniaru 
effaith y gwerthiant ar yr economi leol.  



PAPUR TYSTIOLAETH YSGRIFENEDIG I'R PWYLLGOR MENTER A BUSNES - 
COLLI SWYDDI AR RADDFA FAWR 

Rydym wedi darparu portffolio o raglenni o gymorth ariannol ar gyfer busnesau yn yr 
ardal i ysgogi twf, gan gynnwys darparu cyfalaf gweithio, rhoi rhyddhad ardrethi 
busnes a mynd i'r afael ag anghenion o ran sgiliau a hyfforddiant ar gyfer adferiad ac 
arallgyfeirio.  Drwy gydweithio ar draws Llywodraeth Cymru rydym wedi 
canolbwyntio ar yr adnoddau presennol ac adnoddau newydd i drefnu cronfa ar 
gyfer ymgyrchu yn Sir Benfro (Pembrokeshire Fighting Fund) o £4 miliwn, sy'n creu 
ac yn diogelu 440 o swyddi.   

Rhoddwyd cymorth i unigolion drwy ReAct, Gyrfa Cymru, y Ganolfan Byd Gwaith, 
Busnes Cymru a Penna, gan gynnwys cyngor gyrfaoedd a hyfforddiant, gweithdai, 
ffeiriau swyddi a chymorth ariannol ar gyfer ail-hyfforddi.  Mae prentisiaid wedi'u paru 
â chyflogwyr newydd trwy Goleg Penfro.  Rydym wedi trefnu mentrau paru swyddi 
gan gynnwys porthol ar-lein y Talent Retention Scheme a chynllun chwilio a 
dosbarthu swyddi Penna.  Cafodd Paneli Sectorau, Cwmnïau Angori a Chwmnïau o 
Bwys Rhanbarthol, a rhwydweithiau Ardal Fenter y Daugleddau eu cynnwys er 
mwyn nodi cyfleoedd ar gyfer twf a recriwtio, gan gysylltu'r rhai sy'n creu swyddi 
gyda'r rhai sy'n chwilio am waith yn lleol, trwy lythyrau cynnig grantiau a Rheolwr 
Cyflogwyr y Ganolfan Byd Gwaith.  

Mae Sir Benfro wedi'i flaenoriaethu ar gyfer datblygiadau yn y seilwaith, gan 
gynnwys Band Eang Cyflym Iawn a gwelliannau i'r ffordd i wneud y rhanbarth yn fwy 
deniadol ar gyfer buddsoddi mewnol.  

Mae'n bwysig nodi nad yw'r effaith gwirioneddol ar y gadwyn gyflenwi, a cholledion 
swyddi anuniongyrchol wedi'i deimlo'n llawn hyd yma.  Er i Dasglu Murco sbarduno'r 
gweithredu yn y tymor byr, Ardal Fenter y Daugleddau a Dinas a Rhanbarth 
Abertawe sy'n gyfrifol am y mentrau datblygu economaidd yn y tymor canolig a'r 
hirdymor.    

Roedd y broses o golli swyddi uniongyrchol yn Murco wedi digwydd yn raddol dros 
gyfnod o 7 mis.  Mae'r ystadegau diweddaraf sydd ar gael gan Murco, dyddiedig 1 
Ebrill, yn dangos bod 57 y cant o staff Murco wedi dod o hyd i waith, mwy na hanner 
ohonynt o fewn Sir Benfro.  Roedd 24 y cant yn dal i chwilio.  Y bwriad yw iddynt 
gael eu paru, fel y bo'n briodol, gyda swyddi'n cael eu creu drwy Gronfa Ymgyrchu 
Sir Benfro.  Dim ond 93 o staff Murco ac 89 o gontractwyr sydd wedi hawlio lwfans 
ceiswyr gwaith, gyda 45 a 37 yn dal i gofrestru'n ddi-waith, sy'n adlewyrchu pa mor 
gyflym y mae nifer fawr o staff sydd wedi colli eu swyddi wedi dod o hyd i waith 
newydd.   

Mae'r ffordd y mae Llywodraethau ac asiantaethau wedi dod ynghyd i liniaru effaith 
cau Purfa Murco ar yr economi leol wedi'u nodi fel enghraifft o arfer gorau.  Mae 
gwersi'n cael eu dysgu ar hyn o bryd ynghylch rheoli'r diswyddiadau sy'n cael eu 
gwneud gan Magnox yng Ngogledd Cymru.  

Lluniodd Prifysgol Caerdydd sylfaen dystiolaeth o'r risgiau economaidd ar ddechrau'r 
broses ac mae wedi'i chomisiynu i asesu yr effaith wirioneddol ac i werthuso'r 
prosiect.    

Astudiaeth Achos: Diswyddiadau yn Tata Steel



PAPUR TYSTIOLAETH YSGRIFENEDIG I'R PWYLLGOR MENTER A BUSNES - 
COLLI SWYDDI AR RADDFA FAWR 

Ar 23 Tachwedd 2012, cyhoeddodd Tata Steel ei fod yn bwriadu ail-strwythuro ei 
fusnes yn y DU, a'r effaith net fyddai colli 900 o swyddi ledled y DU, gyda Cymru'n 
dioddef y colledion mwyaf, sy'n golygu cyfanswm o 584 o swyddi.  Cynhaliwyd 
cyfarfod rhwng y Prif Weinidog ac uwch-reolwyr y cwmni, ble y sefydlwyd, er nad 
oedd modd osgoi y colledion, byddai Llywodraeth Cymru yn sefydlu Tasglu i helpu'r  
gweithwyr hynny oedd yn cael eu heffeithio'n uniongyrchol gan y cyhoeddiad.   Tata 
Steel yw un o'n cwmnïau angori mwyaf, ac oherwydd hynny, mae adnodd rheoli 
cyfrif penodol wedi'i neilltuo ar gyfer y cwmni, ac mae perthynas weithio glos rhwng y 
cwmni a Llywodraeth Cymru.   

Cyfarfu'r Tasglu am y tro cyntaf ar 30 Tachwedd, wythnos wedi'r cyhoeddiad.  
Cafodd y cyfarfod hwn, yn ogystal â chyfarfodydd dilynol, eu trefnu a'u cadeirio gan 
swyddogion Llywodraeth Cymru, ac roedd yn cynnwys cynrychiolwyr Tata Steel, 
Llywodraeth Cymru, Undebau Llafur, UK Steel Enterprise, Canolfan Byd Gwaith, 
Gyrfa Cymru, a chynghorau Blaenau Gwent, Caerffili, Mynwy, Castell-nedd Port 
Talbot, a Chasnewydd. 

O'r cychwyn cyntaf, cytunwyd mai gwaith y Tasglu oedd sicrhau fod pob gweithiwr yr 
effeithiwyd arnynt yn gallu cael gafael ar y cyngor a'r canllawiau angenrheidiol i'w 
galluogi i gynllunio ar gyfer y dyfodol.  Gyda chaniatâd y cwmni a chynrychiolwyr yr 
Undebau Llafur, cysylltodd y Tasglu gyda Communitas (ochr hyfforddi Undeb 
Community). 

Erbyn dechrau 2013, cafwyd cytundeb gyda'r cwmni i gynnal cyfres o sesiynau 
cynghori ac arweiniad, sydd ar gael i bob gweithiwr yn yr Academi Hyfforddi ym 
Mhort Talbot.  Mae rhaglen gymorth wedi'i chreu, ar y cyd â Communitas, a 
ddarparwyd trwy gyfres o weithdai ar y cyd â phartneriaid yn Gyrfa Cymru a 
Chanolfan Byd Gwaith.  Roedd tri diwrnod cyntaf y gweithdy a gweithdai dilynol yn 
cynnwys cynrychiolwyr amrywiol ddarparwyr y Tasglu, a hefyd gynrychiolwyr 
CThEM a'r Ganolfan Cyngor ar Bopeth.  Roedd y cyfranogwyr yn gallu dewis o flaen 
llaw i fynd i sesiynau rhoi cyngor ac arweiniad, yn cynnwys Rheoli Newid / Cyllid / 
Newid Dull o Fyw / Paratoi ar gyfer y Farchnad Swyddi / Gwaith Gwirfoddol / Hunan-
gyflogaeth.  

Cafwyd lle i bob gweithiwr a oedd yn dewis manteisio ar y sesiynau cyngor ac 
arweiniad, ac roedd y rhai oedd angen cymorth parhaus yn cael eu cyfeirio at y 
sefydliadau perthnasol.  Roedd swyddogion wrth law i  roi cyngor i Wasanaethau 
ReAct a Dechrau Busnes Llywodraeth Cymru, y ddau ohonynt yn derbyn arian 
Ewropeaidd.  Roedd Rhaglen ReAct yn darparu pecyn cymorth i helpu pobl i fagu 
sgiliau newydd, goresgyn rhwystrau a'i gwneud yn haws iddynt ddod o hyd i waith 
newydd mewn cyn lleied o amser â phosib wedi cael eu diswyddo.  O ddechrau 
2013 hyd heddiw, mae Tata Steel wedi gwneud ceisiadau llwyddiannus am werth 
£47 mil o gyllid ReAct ar gyfer hyfforddiant galwedigaethol.    

Roedd y cymorth oedd yn cael ei gynnig drwy'r Gwasanaeth Dechrau Busnes yn 
cynnwys amrywiol wasanaethau am ddim i helpu pobl i ddechrau a datblygu eu 
busnesau eu hunain.  Cymerodd dau-ar-bymtheg o bobl yr opsiwn i dderbyn cyngor 
ac arweiniad, ac roedd yn debygol y byddai chwech yn dechrau busnesau 
cynaliadwy.  

Bu'r Tasglu'n cyfarfod yn rheolaidd drwy gydol 2013, gan sicrhau fod pob gweithiwr 
a oedd yn dewis derbyn cyngor ac arweiniad yn ei dderbyn yn rhwydd.   Drwy gydol 



PAPUR TYSTIOLAETH YSGRIFENEDIG I'R PWYLLGOR MENTER A BUSNES - 
COLLI SWYDDI AR RADDFA FAWR 

y broses, roedd y cwmni ac amrywiol gynrychiolwyr yr Undebau Llafur yn nodi'n 
rheolaidd fod gweithwyr ac aelodau wedi rhoi adborth bositif iawn am y cymorth fu ar 
gael iddynt.  Roedd y pecynnau iawndal ac ymddeol yn gynnar, a oedd ar gael gan y 
cwmni yn  ystod y cyfnod, yn golygu bod cyfran sylweddol iawn o'r gweithwyr yr 
effeithiwyd arnynt wedi dewis dderbyn pecyn o'r fath.  Erbyn i bob gweithiwr yr 
effeithiwyd arnynt adael y cwmni, roedd Tata Steel yn gallu cadarnhau na fu'n rhaid 
iddynt ddiswyddo unrhyw weithiwr yn orfodol.  Rhwng Ebrill a Hydref, 2013, ychydig 
o dan 100 o weithwyr oedd wedi cadw lle ar y sesiynau gwybodaeth, cyngor ac 
arweiniad.  Roedd yr adborth a gafwyd gan Communitas yn hynod bositif.   

Er nad oedd nifer enfawr o bobl wedi mynd ar y sesiynau rhoi cyngor ac arweiniad o 
gymharu â'r nifer a oedd yn gadael yn y diwedd, drwy ymdrechion cynrychiolwyr y 
Tasglu, cafodd pawb, yn ddi-eithriad, bob cyfle i fanteisio ar yr hyn oedd yn cael ei 
gynnig.  Rhoddodd y rhai a dderbyniodd y cyfle adborth bositif iawn, a adleiswyd yn 
yr adborth gan y cwmni a chynrychiolwyr yr Undebau Llafur.  Teimlwyd bod hwn yn 
batrwm o ran sut y dylai asiantaethau ddod at ei gilydd wrth adweithio i achosion o 
golli swyddi ar raddfa fawr.   











UK Commission for Employment and Skills - Employer Skills Survey, 2013 Wales 
Report:

http://gov.wales/docs/caecd/research/2014/140604-employer-skills-survey-2013-
wales-report-en.pdf

http://gov.wales/docs/caecd/research/2014/140604-employer-skills-survey-2013-wales-report-en.pdf
http://gov.wales/docs/caecd/research/2014/140604-employer-skills-survey-2013-wales-report-en.pdf


	  

	  
	  
	  
	  

Helping	  people	  make	  great	  places	  

	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  

CONSULTATION	  RESPONSE	  
Business	  Rates	  Review	  

	  
June	  2015	  



ATCM	  Consultation	  Response:	  Business	  Rates	  Review	   2 

ABOUT	  THE	  ATCM	  
	  
The	   Association	   of	   Town	   &	   City	   Management	   (ATCM)	   is	   a	   not-‐for-‐profit	  
membership	  organisation	  dedicated	  to	  promoting	  the	  vitality	  and	  viability	  of	  town	  
and	  city	  centres.	   It	  has	  900	  members	  including	  key	  stakeholders	  in	  town	  and	  city	  
centres	   across	   the	   UK	   and	   Ireland.	   400	   of	   these	   are	   town	   and	   city	   centre	  
management	  practitioners	  and	  active	  initiatives.	  The	  majority	  of	  these	  function	  as	  
partnerships,	   some	   with	   several	   hundred	   contributing	   members.	   They	   develop	  
and	  implement	  shared	  visions,	  strategies	  and	  action	  plans	  for	  a	  total	  of	  more	  than	  
700	  district,	  town	  and	  city	  centres	  throughout	  the	  UK	  and	  Ireland.	  ATCM	  has	  been	  
operating	   for	  over	  20	  years	  and	  can	  offer	  a	  significant	  body	  of	  experience	   in	   the	  
field	  of	  place	  management.	  	  
	  
ATCM’s	  membership	  consists	  of	  a	  mix	  of	  publicly	  funded	  town	  centre	  managers,	  
Business	   Improvement	   Districts	   (BIDs),	   Community	   Interest	   Companies	   (CICs),	  
Town	  Teams	  and	  more.	  They	  span	  across	  the	  private,	  public	  and	  voluntary	  sectors	  
and,	  as	  a	  collective,	  do	  not	  have	  a	  sector	  specific	  agenda.	  Instead	  they	  are	  focused	  
on	  the	  promotion	  of	  healthy	  places	  for	  the	  benefit	  of	  all	  stakeholders.	  
	  
Association	  of	  Town	  &	  City	  Management	  
32-‐36	  Loman	  Street,	  	  
London	  SE1	  0EH	  	  
T:	  +44	  (0)300	  330	  0980	  	  
E:	  office@atcm.org	  	  
W:	  www.atcm.org	  	  
	  
ATCM	   is	   a	   company	   limited	   by	   guarantee	   and	   is	   registered	   in	   England	   (No	  
2814583).	  	  

	  
ABOUT	  THE	  AUTHOR	  
	  
Ojay	  McDonald	  is	  the	  Public	  Policy	  Manager	  of	  ATCM.	  	  
	  
T:	  +	  44	  (0)300	  330	  0980	  
E:	  ojay.mcdonald@atcm.org	   	  



ATCM	  Consultation	  Response:	  Business	  Rates	  Review	   3 

CONTENTS	  

	   	  	  Page	  
	  
1.	  Introduction	  

	  
	  	  	  	  	  	  7	  

	  
2.	  The	  Role	  of	  Revenue	  Neutrality	  

	  
	  	  	  	  	  	  10	  

	  
3.	  Why	  Modernisation	  is	  Needed	  

	  
	  	  	  	  	  	  15	  

	  
4.	   Why	   the	   Wider	   Tax	   System	   Prevents	   the	   Modernisation	   of	  
Business	  Rates	  

	  
	  	  	  	  	  	  22	  

	  
5.	  Recommendations	  for	  Modernising	  the	  Tax	  System	  

	  
	  	  	  	  	  	  30	  

	  
	   	  



ATCM	  Consultation	  Response:	  Business	  Rates	  Review	   4 

EXECUTIVE	  SUMMARY	  

	  

The	  Business	  Rates	  system	  is	  obsolete.	  The	  rationale	  for	  revenue	  neutrality	  (price	  

inelasticity)	   is	  no	  longer	  relevant	  to	  modern	  day	  business	  practices	  thanks	  to	  the	  

emergence	  of	  digital	  technology.	  Distortion	  between	  different	  routes	  to	  market	  is	  

now	  possible,	  making	  commercial	  property	  price	  elastic.	  However,	  pressure	  on	  tax	  

revenue	   from	   other	   business	   taxes,	   in	   particular	   Corporation	   Tax,	   have	  made	   it	  

very	  difficult	  for	  the	  Government	  to	  make	  the	  necessary	  structural	  readjustments	  

without	   a	   significant	   fiscal	   shortfall.	   Technological	   advancements	   and	   modern	  

business	   practices	   have	   unsettled	   the	   entire	   UK	   business	   tax	   regime	   and	   so	  

holistic	  reform	  is	  required	  to	  support	  high	  street	  retail.	  Despite	  the	  difficulties	  of	  

this,	  we	  argue	  that	  there	  is	  no	  alternative	  because	  of	  the	  increasing	  irrelevance	  of	  

the	   tax	   system	   to	   modern	   business,	   something	   which	   carries	   dangers	   for	   the	  

future	  of	  urban	  regeneration,	  the	  UK	  economy	  and	  funding	  for	  public	  services.	  	  

	  

We	   believe	   a	   critical	  mass	   of	   key	  MPs	   and	   Government	  Ministers	   have	   already	  

accepted	   the	   need	   for	   urgent	   action	  with	   the	   Chancellor,	   BIS	   Select	   Committee	  

and	  the	  Public	  Accounts	  Select	  Committee	  all	  acknowledging	  the	  problems	  of	  the	  

tax	  regime.	  

	  

Therefore,	  ATCM	  recommends:	  

	  

1.	   The	   comprehensive	   modernisation	   of	   UK	   business	   taxation	   to	   ensure	   it	   is	  

suitably	   aligned	   with	   21st	   Century	   business	   practices	   and	   targets	   real	   economic	  

activity	   to	   support	   urban	   regeneration,	   UK	   commerce	   and	   secure	   the	   future	   of	  

public	  services.	  

	  

2.	   Any	   tax	   on	   commercial	   property,	   land,	   or	   otherwise,	   that	   either	   revises	   or	  

completely	   replaces	   Business	   Rates	   must	   accurately	   reflect	   the	   value	   of	   the	  



ATCM	  Consultation	  Response:	  Business	  Rates	  Review	   5 

activity	   or	   asset	   being	   taxed	   from	   the	   outset,	   and	   adjust	   to	   shifts	   in	   value	   in	   a	  

timely	  manner	  thereafter.	  

	  

3.	  The	  inevitable	  drop	  in	  revenue	  from	  the	  current,	  unsustainable	  levels	  of	  tax	  on	  

property	  should	  be	  offset	  by	  revenue	  derived	  from	  the	  Diverted	  Profits	  Tax	  and/or	  

other	  measures	   introduced	   to	   tackle	   aggressive	   tax	   planning,	   allowing	   for	   fiscal	  

neutrality	   and	   ending	   distortion	   sectors	   that	   are	   reliant	   on	   both	   physical	   and	  

virtual	  environments.	  

	  

4.	  Without	  full	  fiscal	  devolution	  across	  the	  UK,	  revenue	  captured	  from	  successful	  

attempts	   to	   tackle	   aggressive	   tax	   planning	   should	   not	   only	   be	   allocated	   across	  

England	  to	  alleviate	  Business	  Rates	   (or	  any	  alternative	   tax)	  but	  also	  apportioned	  

to	  other	  nations	  in	  the	  UK	  for	  the	  same	  purposes.	  Careful	  consideration	  must	  be	  

given	  to	  Northern	  Ireland	  following	  the	  devolution	  of	  Corporation	  Tax.	  

	  

5.	   Careful	   consideration	   is	   given	   to	   local	   government	   financing	   should	   any	  

significant	   revision	   of	   Business	   Rates	   take	   place	   to	   ensure	   local	   services	   are	  

adequately	  funded.	  

	  

6.	   The	   impact	   of	   changes	   to	   the	   Business	   Rates	   system	   on	   BIDs	   funding	   is	   fully	  

understood	  prior	   to	  alterations	  being	  made	  and	  all	  necessary	  steps	  are	   taken	  to	  

ensure	   businesses	   are	   able	   to	   adequately	   invest	   in	   BIDs	   regardless	   of	   these	  

alterations.	  

	  

7.	  A	  proportion	  of	  the	  tax	  revenue	  derived	  from	  commercial	   locations	  should	  be	  

ring-‐fenced	   and	   reinvested	   back	   into	   local	   economic	   development	   through	  

various	   channels	   decided	   locally	   such	   as	   partnership	   capacity	   building,	   business	  

support	  or	  infrastructure	  investment.	  

	  



ATCM	  Consultation	  Response:	  Business	  Rates	  Review	   6 

8.	   The	   tax	   system	  must	   incentivise	   the	   private,	   public	   and	   voluntary	   sectors	   to	  

invest	   in	  the	  upgrade	  of	  existing	  property	  assets	  to	  boost	  urban	  regeneration	  on	  

brownfield	  sites	  and	  encourage	  a	  more	  productive	  use	  of	  land.	  

	  

9.	   The	   smallest	   businesses	   should	   be	   taken	   out	   of	   the	   tax	   system	   altogether,	   if	  

possible,	  to	  support	  sustainable	  economic	  growth,	  innovation	  and	  employment.	  

	  

10.	  Charity	  retail	   tax	  relief	  should	  be	  retained,	  but	  must	  be	  reformed	  to	  prevent	  

large	  scale	  clustering,	  and	  direct	  competition	  with	  ratepayers.	  



ATCM	  Consultation	  Response:	  Business	  Rates	  Review	   7 

1.	  INTRODUCTION	  
	  

Britain	   has	   one	   of	   the	   highest	   property	   taxes	   as	   a	   percentage	   of	   GDP	   in	   the	  

developed	  world.	  During	  a	  recession	  that	  saw	  major	  retail	  causalities,	  rates	  have	  

gone	   from	   representing	   36%	   of	   rent	   in	   2007	   to	   46%	   of	   rent	   in	   2012.1	  And	   they	  

have	   not	   relented.	   The	   net	   yield	   from	   Business	   Rates	   in	   the	   year	   2012/13	   was	  

£21.8	   billion	   for	   England,	   an	   increase	   of	   3.7%	   on	   the	   previous	   year	   despite	   the	  

tough	  trading	  environment.2	  In	  fact,	  the	  Telegraph	  reports	  that	  rates	  will	  be	  worth	  

£30	  billion	  to	  the	  Treasury	  in	  two	  years,	  more	  than	  council	  tax	  or	  fuel	  duty.3	  	  

	  

Despite	  these	  challenges	  faced	  by	  the	  retail	  sector,	  the	  UK	  Government	  took	  the	  

controversial	   step	  of	  postponing	   the	   revaluation	  of	  Business	  Rates	  by	   two	  years	  

through	   the	   introduction	   of	   the	   Growth	   and	   Infrastructure	   Act	   2013. 4 	  The	  

legislation	  permitted	  Welsh	  ministers	  to	  take	  the	  same	  course	  of	  action	  whilst	  the	  

Scottish	   Government	   introduced	   the	   Valuation	   (Postponement	   of	   Revaluation)	  

(Scotland)	  Order	  2013	  for	  the	  same	  purpose.5	  

	  

With	   businesses	   across	   England,	   Scotland	   and	   Wales	   locked	   to	   paying	   rates	   at	  

levels	  calculated	  in	  2008	  at	  the	  height	  of	  the	  property	  market,	  a	  sense	  of	  injustice	  

pervaded	   across	   those	   sectors	   that	   rely	   on	   commercial	   property.6	  Pricewater	  

House	  Coopers	  estimated	  that	   the	  rates	  contribution	  of	   large	  retailers	   increased	  

in	  excess	  of	  30%	  between	  2008	  and	  2010	  during	  the	  recession7.	  However,	  sales	  in	  

March	   2013	   were	   only	   2%	   higher	   than	   in	  March	   2008	   with	   profit	   margins	   and	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
1	  An	  overhaul	  of	  business	  rates	  is	  vital	  for	  Britain’s	  wider	  economic	  recovery,	  The	  Telegraph,	  21st	  
November	  2013,	  www.telegraph.co.uk/finance/comment/104is-‐vital-‐for-‐Br66764/An-‐overhaul-‐of-‐
business-‐rates-‐	  itains-‐wider-‐economic-‐recovery.html	  
2	  ‘Non-‐domestic	   rates	   collected	  by	   local	   councils	   in	  England:	  2012	   to	  2013	   (updated)’	  Department	  
for	  Communities	  and	  Local	  Government,	  17th	  December	  2013	  
3	  An	  overhaul	  of	  business	  rates	  is	  vital	  for	  Britain’s	  wider	  economic	  recovery,	  The	  Telegraph,	  21st	  
November	  2013,	  www.telegraph.co.uk/finance/comment/104is-‐vital-‐for-‐Br66764/An-‐overhaul-‐of-‐	  
4	  ‘Business	  Rates’,	  House	  of	  Commons	  Library	  Standard	  Note	  SN/PC/06247,	  20th	  September	  2013	  
5	  ‘Partial	  Business	  and	  Regulatory	  Assessment:	  Postponement	  of	  2015	  business	  rates	  revaluation	  to	  
2017’,	  The	  Scottish	  Government,	  2013	  	  
6	  A	  different	  time	  frame	  for	  revaluations	  takes	  place	  in	  Northern	  Ireland.	  	  
7	  ‘The	  Contribution	  of	  Retailers	  to	  the	  UK	  Public	  Finances:	  Total	  Tax	  Contribution’,	  Pricewater	  House	  
Coopers,	  2013	  



ATCM	  Consultation	  Response:	  Business	  Rates	  Review	   8 

volume	   stagnating.	   It	   is	   widely	   acknowledged	   that	   the	   failure	   to	   undertake	   a	  

revaluation	  disadvantages	   those	   sectors	   of	   the	   economy	  and	   those	   regions	   that	  

have	  fared	  relatively	   less	  well	  since	  the	  previous	  revaluation.8	  As	  a	  consequence,	  

the	  process	  of	  revaluation	  has	  been	  called	  into	  question.	  

	  

Despite	   widespread	   and	   unified	   business	   protest,	   the	   UK,	   Welsh	   and	   Scottish	  

governments	  persisted	  with	  this	  course	  of	  action.	   It	   is	  only	  a	  detailed	  analysis	  of	  

the	   Business	   Rates	   system	   that	   reveals	   deep	   structural	   flaws	   indicating	   a	  

revaluation	  would	  not	  alleviate	   the	   tax	  burden	  on	   town	  centre	   retail	  businesses	  

despite	  the	  deterioration	  of	  trading	  conditions	  since	  2008.	  	  

	  

The	   original	   rationale	   for	   revenue	   neutrality	   (price	   inelasticity)	   is	   no	   longer	  

compatible	   with	   modern	   business	   practices	   and	   that	   this	   incompatibility	   is	   not	  

only	  distorting	  the	  retail	  market,	  but	  is	  also	  a	  disincentive	  to	  all	  activity	  that	  relies	  

on	   non-‐domestic	   property	   in	   a	   way	   that	   is	   contradictory	   to	   the	   desires	   of	  

communities	  and	  businesses.	  

	  

There	   emerges	   a	   clear	   case	   for	   the	   modernisation	   of	   Business	   Rates.	   And	   this	  

modernisation	   is	   not	   just	   about	   supporting	   high	   street	   retail,	   but	   will	   be	  

fundamental	  to	  the	  future	  of	  all	  urban	  regeneration,	  the	  funding	  of	  public	  services	  

and	  the	  UK	  economy.	  

	  

We	  assume	  that	  the	  UK	  Government	  is	  fully	  aware	  of	  some	  of	  these	  problems	  or	  

else	  would	  not	  have	  insisted	  on	  postponing	  the	  revaluation.	  We	  outline	  why	  it	   is	  

difficult	   for	   the	   UK	   Government	   and	   others	   to	   implement	   the	   urgent	  

modernisation	  that	  is	  required	  with	  other	  elements	  of	  the	  UK	  tax	  system	  failing	  to	  

keep	  pace	  with	  evolving	  business	  practices.	   It	   is	  becoming	  increasingly	  clear	  that	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
8	  ‘Effect	   of	   Non-‐Domestic	   Rates	   on	   Commercial	   Property	   Rents:	   An	   Empirical	   Study’,	   Journal	   of	  
Property	  Valuation	  and	  Investment,	  Vol	  14,	  No.	  4,	  Stephen	  Bond,	  Kevin	  Denny,	  John	  Hall	  and	  William	  
McCluskey,	  1996	  
	  



ATCM	  Consultation	  Response:	  Business	  Rates	  Review	   9 

significant	   parts	   of	   our	   business	   tax	   system	   (in	   particular,	   Corporation	   Tax)	   are	  

now	   unable	   to	   target	   real	   economic	   activity	   and	   this	   not	   only	   carries	   severe	  

consequences	  for	  long-‐term	  business	  survival,	  but	  also	  funding	  for	  public	  services.	  	  

	  

The	   result	   is	   that	   the	  business	   sectors	   relying	  on	  property	   carry	  a	   significant	   tax	  

burden	   that	   is	   not	   fairly	   allocated	   across	   the	   economy	   and	   not	   reflective	   of	  

modern	  commercial	  activity.	  Rather	  than	  this	  being	  a	  problem	  exclusive	  to	  the	  UK,	  

there	  are	   likely	  similar	   trends	  across	  the	  globe	  (although	  they	  are	  more	  acute	   in	  

the	   UK	   than	   anywhere	   else).	   While	   the	   Government	   has	   promised	   reform	   of	  

business	   rates	  administration,9	  this	   is	  not	   the	  wholesale	  modernisation	  urged	  by	  

the	   Business,	   Innovation	   and	   Skills	   Select	   Committee 10 .	   Instead,	   it	   is	   this	  

consultation	   that	   opens	   up	   the	   opportunity	   for	   the	   significant	   change	   that	   is	  

required.	  

	  

Following	  years	  of	  research	  and	  dialogue	  with	  ATCM	  members	  across	  the	  public,	  

private	  and	  voluntary	  sectors,	  we	  now	  urge	  the	  Government	  to	  take	  forward	  the	  

comprehensive	  modernisation	   of	   the	   business	   tax	   system	   to	   alleviate	   the	  worst	  

effects	   of	   distortion.	   Co-‐ordination	   and	   collaboration	   on	   a	   scale	   seldom	   seen	  

before	   is	  required	  to	  find	  an	  alternative	  and	  more	  productive	  route	  forward	  and	  

the	   private	   sector,	   local	   government,	   the	   UK’s	   policy-‐makers	   and	   international	  

actors,	  to	  name	  a	  few,	  must	  be	  part	  of	  this	  discussion.	  

	  

	   	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
9	  ‘Administration	  of	  Business	  Rates	  in	  England:	  Discussion	  Paper’,	  HM	  Treasury	  &	  Department	  for	  
Communities	  and	  Local	  Government,	  April	  2014	  
10	  ‘The	  Retail	  Sector:	  Eighth	  Report	  of	  Session	  2013-‐14,	  Volume	  I’,	  Business,	  Innovation	  and	  Skills	  
Committee,	  4th	  March	  2014	  



ATCM	  Consultation	  Response:	  Business	  Rates	  Review	   10 

2.	  THE	  ROLE	  OF	  REVENUE	  NEUTRALITY	  

	  

In	  the	  late	  80s,	  the	  Thatcher	  administration	  became	  concerned	  about	  the	  role	  of	  

local	  authorities	   in	  dictating	   rates	  and,	   through	   the	  198	  Green	  Paper	   ‘Paying	   for	  

Local	   Government’	   proposed	   a	   uniform	   business	   rate	   (UBR)	   which	  would	   apply	  

across	   Great	   Britain,	   transforming	   a	   non-‐domestic	   rate	   into	   a	   national	   non-‐

domestic	   rate.11	  The	   proposal	   was	   brought	   forward	   in	   Great	   Britain	   (but	   not	  

Northern	   Ireland	   where	   the	   power	   to	   set	   the	   tax	   rate	   remains	   with	   district	  

councils)	  through	  the	  Local	  Government	  Finance	  Act	  1988	  and	  made	  effective	  on	  

the	   1st	   April	   1990.12	  This	   Act	   represents	   the	   last	  major	   structural	   change	   to	   the	  

mechanism	  for	  calculating	  business	  rates.	  

	  

To	   reflect	   the	   likelihood	   that	   property	   values	  will	   fluctuate	   over	   time	   the	   Local	  

Government	   Finance	   Act	   1988	   established	   that	   a	   revaluation	   should	   take	   place	  

once	   every	   five	   years.	   The	   VOA	   (and	   the	   Assessors	   in	   Scotland)	   will	   reassess	  

properties	   and	   determine	   a	   new	   rateable	   value	   from	   a	   specific	   date	   (known	   in	  

England	  and	  Wales	  as	  the	  Antecedent	  Valuation	  Date	  and	  in	  Scotland	  as	  the	  Tone	  

Date).	  	  

	  

The	  most	   important	  feature	  of	  the	  Business	  Rates	  system	  is	  the	  mechanism	  that	  

sustains	   revenue	   neutrality	   after	   every	   revaluation	   –	   the	   setting	   of	   the	   UBR.	   A	  

new	   UBR	   has	   to	   be	   set,	   based	   on	   the	   reassessed	   national	   rateable	   values.	   The	  

reason	   for	   this	   is	   the	   Local	   Government	   Finance	   Act	   1988	   requires	   that	   the	   tax	  

rate	  is	  adjusted	  to	  ensure	  the	  yield	  from	  rates	  remains	  exactly	  the	  same,	  ensuring	  

revenue	   neutrality.	   In	   effect,	   with	   every	   revaluation,	   the	   national	   government	  

does	  not	  aim	   to	   collect	   any	  more	  or	  any	   less	   revenue	   in	   ‘real	   terms’	   than	   it	  did	  

previously.	  

	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
11	  ‘The	  Effect	  of	  Business	  Rates	  on	  Rental	  Values’,	  Journal	  of	  Property	  Valuation	  and	  Investment,	  Vol	  
7,	  No	  4,	  Ian	  Sibley,	  1989	  
12	  ‘Business	  Rates’,	  House	  of	  Commons	  Library	  Standard	  Note	  SN/PC/06247,	  20th	  September	  2013 



ATCM	  Consultation	  Response:	  Business	  Rates	  Review	   11 

The	  Historic	  Rationale	  for	  a	  Revenue	  Neutral	  Commercial	  Property	  Tax	  

The	  central	  premise	  of	  this	  consultation	  response	  is	  that	  the	  historic	  rationale	  of	  

revenue	   neutrality	   no	   longer	   applies	   to	   many	   of	   the	   sectors	   that	   pay	   Business	  

Rates.	  It	  is	  essential	  for	  the	  Government	  to	  understand	  why	  this	  is.	  	  

	  

Consider	  retail,	  the	  sector	  that	  has	  probably	  been	  most	  exposed	  change	  (as	  a	  tax	  

on	   fixed	   capital,	   rates	   naturally	   have	   a	   particularly	   heavy	   burden	   on	   the	  

distributive	  trades13).	  	  

	  

At	  the	  time	  of	  the	  introduction	  of	  the	  Local	  Government	  Finance	  Act	  1988,	  retail	  

was	  a	  very	  different	   industry.	  Although	  revenue	  neutrality	  means	  Business	  Rates	  

deviated	   from	   most	   other	   taxes	   because	   it	   did	   not	   target	   activity	   or	   flows	   of	  

income	  or	  expenditure,	  having	  only	  a	  nominal	  affiliation	  to	  business	  performance	  

through	  a	   link	   to	  property	   rental	  values,	   it	   carried	  certainty	   for	   the	  Government	  

without	   greatly	   distorting	   investment.	   Property	   is	   relatively	   price	   inelastic	   and	  

could	   be	   taxed	   without	   significantly	   altering	   behaviour.	   In	   an	   era	   where	   the	  

majority	   of	   retail	   trade	   took	   place	   on	   the	   high	   street,	   investors,	   businesses	   and	  

consumers	  would	  have	  little	  choice	  but	  to	  absorb	  the	  cost	  of	  a	  property	  tax	  or	  be	  

alienated	  from	  the	  market.	  Hence,	  price	  inelasticity	  was	  strong	  and	  readjustments	  

of	  property	  ratings	  through	  revaluations	  would	  result	  in	  businesses	  located	  in	  the	  

poorer	  performing	  retail	  centres	   likely	  to	  pay	  less	  over	  time,	  subsidised	  by	  those	  

businesses	   in	  better	  performing	  centres,	  a	   reasonable	  compromise	  with	  stability	  

for	  the	  funding	  of	  public	  services.	  

	  

The	  Impact	  of	  Revenue	  Neutrality	  During	  the	  Recession	  

The	   recession	   posed	   a	   challenge	   to	   the	   principle	   of	   revenue	   neutrality.	   While	  

other	  business	   taxes	  shift	  depending	  on	  economic	  conditions,	  a	   revenue	  neutral	  

tax	   cannot.	   The	   Institute	   Fiscal	   Studies	   states	   that	   in	   2007/8	   at	   the	   start	   of	   the	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
13	  ‘Effect	   of	   Non-‐Domestic	   Rates	   on	   Commercial	   Property	   Rents:	   An	   Empirical	   Study’,	   Journal	   of	  
Property	  Valuation	  and	  Investment,	  Vol	  14,	  No.	  4,	  Stephen	  Bond,	  Kevin	  Denny,	  John	  Hall	  and	  William	  
McCluskey,	  1996	  



ATCM	  Consultation	  Response:	  Business	  Rates	  Review	   12 

recession,	   Business	   Rates	   accounted	   for	   3.9%	  of	   the	   total	   tax	   take.	  While	   other	  

taxes	  shrank,	  Business	  Rates	  grew	  to	  4.6%	  of	  the	  total	  tax	  take	  by	  the	  end	  of	  the	  

recession.14	  The	  problem	  is	  that,	  during	  the	  recession	  the	  fall	  in	  rental	  values	  has	  

been	   nearly	   universal.	   Revenue	   neutrality	   cannot	   protect	   any	   businesses	   in	   a	  

climate	  where	  everyone	  is	  struggling.	  

	  

The	   Investment	   Property	   Databank’s	   annual	   Key	   Centres	   report	   estimates	   that	  

from	   December	   2007	   to	   December	   2011,	   rental	   value	   in	   retail	   centres	   across	  

England	   dropped	   by	   14%.	   While	   2007	   to	   2011	   does	   not	   represent	   the	   exact	  

timeframe	   that	   would	   have	   been	   used	   for	   a	   revaluation,	   it	   can	   act	   as	   a	   useful	  

barometer	   for	   illustrating	   the	   impact	  on	   retail	  businesses.	  Because	  of	  a	   revenue	  

neutral	   rates	   system,	   rather	   than	   this	   result	   in	   a	   14%	   drop	   in	   the	   rates	   bill	   the	  

Government	  would	   increase	   the	  UBR	   to	   sustain	   the	  same	   tax	   rate.	   It	  means	   the	  

tax	   liability	   is	   merely	   apportioned	   differently	   amongst	   the	   occupiers	   of	  

commercial	   property	  with	   the	   same	  net	   result.	  With	   -‐14%	  acting	   roughly	   as	   the	  

benchmark,	  it	  is	  only	  those	  occupiers	  who	  see	  their	  rental	  values	  drop	  in	  excess	  of	  

-‐14%	  that	  are	  likely	  to	  get	  any	  decrease	  in	  the	  rates	  bill.	  This	  means	  retail	  centres	  

that	   have	   experienced	   difficult	   trading	   conditions	   leading	   to	   a	   10%	   fall	   in	   the	  

rental	  value	  of	  property	  would	  be	  likely	  to	  see	  a	  rates	  increase	  (around	  4%).	  Those	  

businesses	   that	   have	   seen	   no	   change	   in	   their	   rental	   value	   would	   see	   a	   14%	  

increase.	  

	  

In	  effect,	  struggling	  centres	  will	  only	  get	  relief	  from	  a	  revaluation	  if	  other	  centres	  

that	  will	  also	  be	  struggling	  (but	  to	  a	  lesser	  extent)	  absorb	  the	  tax	  liability.	  	  	  

	  

While	   the	   postponement	   of	   the	   revaluation	   has	   harmed	   those	   businesses	   that	  

have	   seen	   their	   rental	   values	   fall,	   the	   next	   revaluation	   will	   ruthlessly	   decimate	  

those	   few	   businesses	   that	   had	   thrived	   despite	   the	   recession.	   Research	   from	  

Gerald	   Eve	   indicates	   that	  West	   End	   shops	   that	   already	  pay	   some	  of	   the	  highest	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
14	  Stuart	  Adam	  and	  Helen	  Miller,	  Institute	  of	  Fiscal	  Studies,	  Green	  Budget,	  February	  2014	  



ATCM	  Consultation	  Response:	  Business	  Rates	  Review	   13 

commercial	   property	   costs	   in	   the	   country	   could	   see	   their	   rates	   bills	   increase	   by	  

80%.15	  This	  is	  unsustainable.	  

	  

Why	  the	  Downward	  Trend	  in	  Property	  Values	  are	  Permanent,	  Not	  Cyclical	  	  

Reform	  of	  this	  system	  has	  been	  resisted	  on	  the	  notion	  that	  this	  is	  cyclical	  and	  that	  

revenue	  neutrality	  will	  protect	  businesses	  during	  a	  period	  of	  growth	  in	  the	  same	  

way	  it	  may	  harm	  them	  during	  a	  recession.	  However,	  this	  is	  no	  longer	  the	  case,	  the	  

market	  structure	  is	  almost	  completely	  unrecognisable	  today.	  	  

	  

There	   has	   been	   a	   fundamental	   shift	   in	   the	   retail	   paradigm	   caused	   by	   digital	  

technology.	  Online	  retail	  expenditure	  in	  the	  UK	  has	  increased	  from	  £0.4	  billion	  in	  

1998	  to	  an	  estimated	  £29.6	  billion	  in	  2012	  according	  to	  Verdict	  Retail,	  an	  increase	  

of	  14	  percentage	  points	  in	  just	  over	  a	  decade	  (see	  Figure	  1).	  	  

	  

This	   means	   trade	   is	   no	   longer	   dependent	   on	   property,	   retail	   has	   a	   range	   of	  

effective	   routes	   to	   market	   that	   negate	   the	   need	   for	   any	   significant	   property	  

portfolio.	  	  

	  

This	   is	   not	   limited	   to	   shopping.	   A	   broad	   range	   of	   advancements	   through	   ICT	  

means	  organisations	  as	  different	  as	  banks,	  travel	  agents	  and	  local	  authorities	  can	  

all	  offer	  services	  online	  to	  rationalise	  property	  costs.	  Even	  office	  space	  is	  not	  the	  

necessity	   it	   once	  was	   for	   small	   businesses	  as	  people	  are	  able	   to	  work	  wherever	  

they	  have	  access	  to	  a	  mobile	  phone,	  a	  laptop	  and	  Internet	  access,	  demonstrated	  

by	  the	  fact	  that	  the	  UK	  now	  has	  2.9	  million	  home	  based	  businesses.16	  We	  are	  at	  

the	  dawn	  of	  a	  new	  era	  for	  society	  where	  digital	  is	  the	  norm.	  

	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
15	  Gerald	  Eve,	  West	  End	  Shops	  Face	  80%	  Surge	  In	  Business	  Rates	  Bills,	  
www.geraldeve.com/news/west-‐end-‐shops-‐face-‐80-‐surge-‐in-‐business-‐rates-‐bills/	  
16	  BIS,	  Backing	  for	  home-‐based	  business	  boom,	  www.gov.uk/government/news/backing-‐for-‐home-‐
based-‐business-‐boom	  



ATCM	  Consultation	  Response:	  Business	  Rates	  Review	   14 

Figure	   1	   -‐	   UK	   Online	   Retail	   Expenditure	   1998-‐2012e	   and	   Share	   of	   Total	   Retail	  

Expenditure	  

	  

	  

The	  core	  rationale	  for	  a	  revenue	  neutral	  tax	  system,	  price	  inelasticity,	  is	  effectively	  

redundant	  with	   investors,	   businesses	   and	   consumers	   able	   engage	   in	   a	   range	   of	  

practices	   without	   the	   need	   for	   commercial	   property.	   If	   price	   inelasticity	   is	  

redundant	  then	  a	  revenue	  neutral	  system	  is	  obsolete.	  The	  Business	  Rates	  system,	  

no	   longer	   reflects	  neither	  modern	  business	  practices	  nor	   real	   economic	  activity.	  

The	  falls	  we	  have	  seen	  during	  the	  recession	  are	  not	  cyclical	  and	  we	  do	  not	  expect	  

to	   see	   rental	   values	   reach	   pre-‐recession	   levels	   without	   major	   structural	  

readjustment.	   The	   question	   is	   whether	   this	   readjustment	   is	   proactively	   and	  

positively	  shaped	  by	  the	  Government,	  or	  if	  it	  is	  left	  to	  the	  market	  under	  the	  cloud	  

of	  a	  distortive	  tax	  system	  combined	  with	  pressures	  on	  land-‐use.	  

	  

	   	  

0.4 1 1.8 3.2 3.8 4.8 6 7.8 
10.4 

13.9 
17.2 

19.9 
23.1 

26.2 
29.6 

0.3	   0.7	   1.1	  
1.8	   2	  

2.5	  
3	  

3.9	  
5	  

6.5	  

8	  

9.6	  

11.1	  

12.7	  

14.3	  

0	  

2	  

4	  

6	  

8	  

10	  

12	  

14	  

16	  

0	  

5	  

10	  

15	  

20	  

25	  

30	  

35	  

Value	  (£bn)	  

Share	  of	  Total	  Retail	  (%)	  



ATCM	  Consultation	  Response:	  Business	  Rates	  Review	   15 

3.	  WHY	  MODERNISATION	  IS	  NEEDED	  

	  

Something	   that	   is	   frequently	  asked	   is	  whether	  consumers	   still	   actually	  value	   the	  

high	  street	  or	  whether	  society	  has	  simply	  moved	  on.	  The	  evidence	  suggests	  that	  

not	   only	   do	   consumers	   still	   value	   the	   high	   street	   but	   it	   is	   no	   longer	   taken	   for	  

granted	  following	  the	  visible	  turbulence	  caused	  by	  the	  recession.	  	  

	  

The	   response	   to	   the	  Portas	  Review	  can	  be	  used	  as	   an	   indicator	  with	  nearly	  400	  

proposals	   to	   form	  a	  pilot	  put	   forward	   in	  Spring	  2012.	  The	  willingness	   to	   reverse	  

decline	  locally	  by	  community-‐led	  groups	  has	  taken	  many	  by	  surprise.	  

	  

Other	  research	  complements	  this	  view.	  70%	  of	  shoppers	  surveyed	  claimed	  that	  in-‐

store	  shopping	  was	  still	  critical	  because	  of	  the	  interaction	  with	  products	  and	  social	  

interaction	   important	   for	   both	   those	  who	   view	   shopping	   as	   a	   leisure	   activity	   or	  

require	  detailed	  product	  information	  from	  staff	  prior	  to	  purchase.17	  	  

	  

In	  a	  separate	  survey	  on	  the	  transformation	  of	  the	  Post	  Office	  network	  more	  than	  

90%	  of	  respondents	  stated	  that	  the	  main	  town	  or	  city	  centre	  Post	  Office	  should	  be	  

located	   centrally	   where	   it	   is	   conveniently	   accessible	   and	   not	   relocated	   out-‐of-‐

town.18	  It	  is	  clear	  that	  consumers	  still	  value	  the	  high	  street	  with	  shopping	  just	  one	  

of	  many	  important	  dimensions	  of	  the	  offer.	  

	  

Not	   surprisingly,	   businesses	   want	   to	   be	  where	   their	   customers	   want	   to	   be	   and	  

their	  concerns	  about	   the	   Internet	  as	  a	  substitute	  mirror	   that	  of	   their	  customers.	  

Research	   shows	   that	   suppliers	   still	   value	   having	   their	   products	   sold	   through	   a	  

physical	   store	   because	   it	   is	   an	   environment	   and	   medium	   that	   cannot	   be	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
17	  ‘The	  Multichannel	  High	  Street,	  A	  Nation	  of	  Shoppers	  –	  But	  is	  it	  a	  Nation	  of	  Shopkeepers?’,	  Squire	  
Sanders,	  Kantar	  Retail	  &	  Retail	  Trust,	  2013	  
18	  ‘Centre	  First:	  Making	  Changes	  to	  Main	  town	  and	  City	  Centre	  Post	  Offices	  Right	  for	  Consumers’	  
Andy	  Burrows,	  Consumer	  Futures,	  2013	  



ATCM	  Consultation	  Response:	  Business	  Rates	  Review	   16 

completely	   replicated	   online.19	  In	   fact,	   it	   has	   emerged	   that,	   despite	   being	   the	  

fastest	  growing	  segment	  of	  retail,	  shoppers,	  suppliers	  and	  retailers	  do	  not	  believe	  

that	   online	   shopping	   is	   ideal	   for	   all	   occasions.20	  There	   are	   concerns	   about	   its	  

efficiency,	   especially	   in	   relation	   to	   the	   costs	   and	   timings	   of	   deliveries	   being	  

problematic.	   Difficulties	   with	   product	   returns	   and	   the	   communication	   of	   any	  

detailed	  product	  information	  have	  also	  been	  identified.	  

	  

Interestingly,	  the	  picture	  that	  emerges	  from	  both	  consumers	  and	  businesses	  is	  not	  

that	  they	  see	  the	  high	  street	  and	  Internet	  pitched	  against	  each	  other.	  Rather,	  each	  

route	  to	  market	  has	  its	  own	  particular	  strengths	  and	  these	  can	  be	  merged	  through	  

multi-‐channel	   strategies	   for	   the	   benefit	   of	   everyone.	   Consumers	   want	   the	  

capacity	  to	  use	  a	  variety	  of	  methods	  to	  engage	  with,	  and	  purchase	  their	  products,	  

possibly	  benefitting	  from	  the	  high	  street	  and	  digital	  technology	  at	  the	  same	  time	  

in	  a	  seamless	  experience.21	  Retailers	  of	  all	  kinds	  are	  adapting	  accordingly.22	  

	  

Argos	  claims	  that	  multi-‐channel	  already	  accounts	  for	  half	  of	  all	  its	  revenues	  and	  a	  

store	   is	   involved	   at	   some	   point	   during	   90%	   of	   all	   its	   transactions.23	  Amazon,	  

meanwhile,	  recognising	  that	  consumers	  want	  choice,	  have	  revealed	  the	  need	  for	  a	  

physical	  presence	  on	  the	  high	  street.	  

	  

Despite	   shoppers	   and	   businesses	   alike	   desiring	   a	   physical	   and	   virtual	   offer	   that	  

complement	   each	   other,	   the	   high	   street	   appears	   unable	   capitalise	   on	   the	  

opportunity	  to	  be	  part	  of	   this	   future	  with	   lop-‐sided	  growth	  exclusively	   favouring	  

online.	   Regardless	   of	   the	   desires	   of	   shoppers,	   the	   truth	   is	   that	   90%	   of	   those	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
19	  ‘The	  Multichannel	  High	  Street,	  A	  Nation	  of	  Shoppers	  –	  But	  is	  it	  a	  Nation	  of	  Shopkeepers?’,	  Squire	  
Sanders,	  Kantar	  Retail	  &	  Retail	  Trust,	  2013	  
20	  ‘The	  Multichannel	  High	  Street,	  A	  Nation	  of	  Shoppers	  –	  But	  is	  it	  a	  Nation	  of	  Shopkeepers?’,	  Squire	  
Sanders,	  Kantar	  Retail	  &	  Retail	  Trust,	  2013 
21	  ‘The	  Multichannel	  High	  Street,	  A	  Nation	  of	  Shoppers	  –	  But	  is	  it	  a	  Nation	  of	  Shopkeepers?’,	  Squire	  
Sanders,	  Kantar	  Retail	  &	  Retail	  Trust,	  2013	  
22 	  ‘Online	   retailers	   move	   into	   bricks	   and	   mortar	   stores’	   BBC	   News,	   Baker,	   L.	  
http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/business-‐24728406,	  2013	  
23	  ‘The	  Multichannel	  High	  Street,	  A	  Nation	  of	  Shoppers	  –	  But	  is	  it	  a	  Nation	  of	  Shopkeepers?’,	  Squire	  
Sanders,	  Kantar	  Retail	  &	  Retail	  Trust,	  2013	  



ATCM	  Consultation	  Response:	  Business	  Rates	  Review	   17 

surveyed	   have	   confessed	   to	   ‘showrooming’,	   whereby	   they	   get	   the	   required	  

product	  information	  in-‐store	  and	  then	  purchase	  the	  product	  in	  question	  from	  an	  

alternative	  channel.24	  76%	  of	  the	  shoppers	  admitted	  defecting	  to	  the	   Internet	  to	  

capitalise	  on	  lower	  prices.	  	  

	  

Figure	  2:	  Recurrent	  Property	  Taxes	  as	  %	  of	  GDP	  

	  

	  

Although	  there	  may	  be	  a	  number	  of	  reasons	  why	  prices	  might	  be	  cheaper	  online,	  

the	  burden	  of	  rates	   is	   likely	  to	  be	  a	  major	  contributory	   factor	  as	   it	   is	  an	  obvious	  

point	   of	   differentiation	   between	   the	   operations	   of	   a	   traditional	   retailer	   and	   an	  

online	   retailer.	   It	   is	   fair	   to	  ask	   if	   there	   is	  any	  correlation	  between	  the	  UK	  having	  

the	  highest	  recurrent	  property	  taxes	  of	  all	  OECD	  countries	  as	  a	  proportion	  of	  GDP	  

(see	   figure	   2)25	  and	   some	   of	   the	   highest	   levels	   of	   online	   shopping	   in	   the	   world	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
24	  ‘The	  Multichannel	  High	  Street,	  A	  Nation	  of	  Shoppers	  –	  But	  is	  it	  a	  Nation	  of	  Shopkeepers?’,	  Squire	  
Sanders,	  Kantar	  Retail	  &	  Retail	  Trust,	  2013	  
25	  OECD	  revenue	  statistics	  2013	  



ATCM	  Consultation	  Response:	  Business	  Rates	  Review	   18 

both	   in	   terms	   of	   proportion	   of	   market	   share	   (figure	   3)26	  and	   sales	   per	   person	  

(figure	  4)27.	  

	  

Figure	  3:	  	  

	  

	  

Figure	  4:	  

	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
26	  Online	  Retailing:	  Britain,	  Europe,	  US	  and	  Canada	  2015,	  Centre	  for	  Retail	  Research	  
27	  Online	  Retailing:	  Britain,	  Europe,	  US	  and	  Canada	  2015,	  Centre	  for	  Retail	  Research	  



ATCM	  Consultation	  Response:	  Business	  Rates	  Review	   19 

	  

If	   this	   is	   the	   case	   then	   there	   is	   a	   strong	  argument	   to	   suggest	   the	  decline	  of	   the	  

high	  street	  is	  not	  exclusively	  driven	  by	  consumer	  and	  business	  behaviour	  because	  

of	   societal	   changes,	   but	   this	   behaviour	   is	   distorted	   by	   the	   tax	   system.	   The	  

distributional	   effects	  of	   the	  burden	  of	   tax	   is	   often	  evaluated	  on	   the	  principle	  of	  

‘ability	   to	   pay’.	   Clearly,	   the	   existing	   Business	   Rates	   system	   completely	   fails	   this	  

principle.28	  

	  

Without	   intervention,	   the	   contraction	   in	   retail	   businesses	   could	   be	   severe.	   The	  

Centre	  for	  Retail	  Research	  suggests	  that	  retailers	  in	  the	  UK	  have	  to	  downsize	  and	  

use	   the	   Internet	   to	   compete	   to	   prevent	   entire	   product	   categories	   being	  

dominated	   by	   pure	   online	   players.29	  They	   estimate	   that	   those	   who	   achieve	   the	  

development	  of	  a	  strong	  web	  offering	  now	  only	  need	  70	  high	  street	  stores	  to	  have	  

a	   national	   presence	   in	   comparison	   to	   250	   in	   the	  mid	   2000s.	   Consequently,	   the	  

Centre	   predicts	   that	   online	   retail	   in	   the	  UK	  will	   account	   for	   21.5%	  by	   2018,	   the	  

highest	  proportion	  in	  the	  world.	  	  

	  

Other	  Negative	  Outcomes	  

Without	  comprehensive	  modernisation	  we	  could	  see	  significant	  problems	  in	  other	  

areas.	  

	  

• Undesirable	  Changes	  in	  the	  Business	  Mix:	  Businesses	  with	  rate	  relief	  and	  

those	   with	   high	   margin	   operations	   will	   increasingly	   dominate	   the	   high	  

street	   as	   landlords	   can	   be	   assured	   of	   a	   return	   on	   investment.	  We	   have	  

already	  seen	  this,	  rightly	  or	  wrongly,	  with	  the	  clustering	  of	  charity	  shops,	  

payday	   loan	   shops	   and	   betting	   shops.	   Vacant	   units	   and	   high	   business	  

churn	  are	  already	  persistent	  problems.	  

	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
28	  ‘The	   European	   Commission’s	   proposal	   for	   a	   common	   consolidated	   corporate	   tax	   base’,	   Oxford	  
Review	  of	  Economic	  Policy,	  Vol	  24,	  No	  4,	  pp.720-‐739,	  Clemens	  Fuest,	  2008	  
29	  ‘Retail	  In	  2018:	  Shop	  Numbers,	  Online	  And	  The	  High	  Street’	  Centre	  for	  Retail	  Research,	  2013 



ATCM	  Consultation	  Response:	  Business	  Rates	  Review	   20 

• Higher	  Barriers	  to	  Entry	  for	  Entrepreneurs:	  Start-‐ups	  and	  small	  businesses	  

have	   been	   increasingly	   vocal	   about	   their	   inability	   to	   expand	   operations	  

because	   of	   occupancy	   costs.	   Even	  where	   landlords	   have	   been	  willing	   to	  

take	  a	  hit	  on	  rent,	  the	  rates	  alone	  can	  be	  too	  much	  for	  small	  businesses	  to	  

absorb.	  

	  

• Persistent	   Productivity	   Problems:	   Innovation	   is	   a	   driving	   force	   behind	  

strong	   productivity	   growth.	   However,	   with	   high	   commercial	   property	  

costs,	   taking	   on	   office	   space	   is	   not	   an	   attractive	   proposition	   for	   small	  

businesses	  meaning	   they	   lose	   the	   opportunity	   to	   co-‐locate,	   collaborate,	  

network	   and	   ultimately	   innovate	   with	   others.	   If	   clustering	   of	  

entrepreneurs	   and	   creative	   businesses	   is	   discouraged,	   then	   our	  

productivity	  problems	  will	  persist.	  

	  

• Deterioration	   of	  Accessibility	   to	   Public	   Services:	   This	   distortionary	   effect	  

also	   spreads	   to	   the	   decision-‐making	   of	   public	   agencies	   with	  many	   local	  

authorities	   looking	   to	   cut	   costs	   by	   rationalising	   their	   property	   portfolio	  

and,	   sometimes	  moving	   important	   services	  out	  of	  more	  expensive	   town	  

centre	   locations,	   making	   them	   less	   accessible	   for	   staff	   and	   users,	   and	  

contributing	  to	  a	  drop	  in	  town	  centre	  footfall.	  

	  

• Lack	  of	  Investment	  by	  Landlords:	  Excessive	  tax	  rates	  merged	  with	  a	  tough	  

lending	  environment	  means	  we	  have	  seen	  increasing	  apathy	  by	  landlords	  

towards	   investing	   in	   their	   town	   centre	   stock.	   In	   some	   areas	   of	   Great	  

Britain,	   we	   have	   seen	   a	   huge	   appetite	   to	   actually	   divest	   in	   their	  

commercial	   assets	   completely,	   converting	   to	  more	   profitable	   residential	  

property.	  Despite	  a	  genuine	  need	  to	  create	  more	  housing	  through	  a	  plan-‐

led	   system,	   a	   danger	   has	   emerged	   where	   key	   employment	   and	   service	  

hubs	  are	  being	  lost	  as	  individual	  landlords	  attempt	  to	  protect	  their	  assets	  



ATCM	  Consultation	  Response:	  Business	  Rates	  Review	   21 

from	   the	   tax	   system.	   The	   suffocation	   of	   investment	   in	   property	  

undermines	  urban	  regeneration.	  

	  

• Potential	   Collapse	   of	   Revenue	   for	   Public	   Services	   and	   Pensions:	   As	   the	  

capability	   of	   digital	   technology	   grows	   we	   must	   expect	   long-‐term	  

significant	  shrinkage	  in	  parts	  of	  the	  tax	  base.	  The	  negative	  effects	  of	  this	  

will	  be	  felt	  primarily	  by	  public	  services	  that	  depend	  on	  the	  sustainability	  of	  

this	   revenue	   and	   pensions	   that	   traditionally	   hold	   huge	   stakes	   in	  

commercial	  property.	  

	   	  



ATCM	  Consultation	  Response:	  Business	  Rates	  Review	   22 

4.	  WHY	  THE	  WIDER	  TAX	  SYSTEM	  PREVENTS	  THE	  MODERNISATION	  OF	  

BUSINESS	  RATES	  

	  

Business	   Rates	   is	   a	   significant	   proportion	   of	   the	   UK’s	   tax	   revenue.	   ATCM	  

acknowledges	   that	   significant	  cuts	  cannot	  happen	  unless	   income	   for	   local	  public	  

services	   can	   be	   sustained	   through	   other	   sources.	   However,	   over	   the	   past	   two	  

decade	   academics	   have	   raised	   concerns	   here,	   stating	   the	   there	   is	   a	   general	  

challenge	  for	  many	  governments,	  prompting	  them	  to	  become	  inflexible	  with	  taxes	  

on	  commercial	  property	  and	  other	   fixed	  assets.	  Tax	  authorities	  across	   the	  world	  

have	   been	   struggling	   for	   decades	   with	   the	   emergence	   and	   growth	   of	   mobile	  

capital.	  	  

	  

Mobile	  Capital	  and	  the	  Problem	  for	  Tax	  Authorities	  

The	  mobility	  of	  capital	   in	  modern	  business	  practice	  is	  best	   illustrated	  by	  changes	  

to	  Corporation	  Tax	  over	  the	  last	  100	  years.	  In	  1920,	  in	  an	  attempt	  to	  foster	  cross-‐

border	   trade	   following	   the	   war,	   the	   League	   of	   Nations	   developed	   a	   set	   of	   tax	  

principles	  that	  would	  lead	  to	  domestic	  and	  international	  rules	  minimising	  double	  

taxation.30	  It	   meant	   multi-‐national	   organisations,	   when	   operating	   across	   many	  

different	  domestic	  tax	  authorities	  would	  not	  be	  taxed	  for	  the	  same	  activity	  more	  

than	  once.	  

	  

Nearly	  100	  years	   later,	   and	  business	  practices	  have	  moved	  on.	  According	   to	   the	  

OECD,	  globalisation	  is	  nothing	  new	  but	  it’s	  pace	  has	  changed	  significantly.	  Global	  

business	  models,	  once	  the	  exception,	  are	  now	  the	  norm	  with	  the	  free	  movement	  

of	   capital	   and	   manufacturing	   to	   lower	   costs	   locations.	   Developments	   in	  

technology	   and	   telecommunications	   enabled	   an	   evolution	   from	   country	   specific	  

operating	   models	   to	   global	   models	   more	   aligned	   to	   matrix	   management	   and	  

integrated	   supply	   chains.	   The	   growth	   of	   a	   knowledge	   economy	   where	   value	   in	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
30 	  ‘Addressing	   Base	   Erosion	   and	   Profit	   Shifting’	   Organisation	   for	   Economic	   Co-‐operation	   and	  
Development,	  2013-‐12-‐17	  



ATCM	  Consultation	  Response:	  Business	  Rates	  Review	   23 

goods	  and	   services	   can	  be	   found	   in	   things	   such	  as	  product	  design,	  R&D	  support	  

and	  intellectual	  property	  has	  meant	  great	  emphasis	  placed	  on	  intangibles.	  Add	  to	  

this	   the	   rise	  of	   the	  digital	   economy	  and	   it	  becomes	  clear	   that	   the	  movement	  of	  

capital	  is	  far	  more	  fluid	  than	  it	  has	  ever	  been.	  Meanwhile,	  the	  taxation	  model	  for	  

cross-‐border	  activity	  remains	  relatively	  unchanged.	  

	  

This	   has	   given	   rise	   to	   two	   problems	   in	   particular.	   Firstly,	   it	   can	   be	   genuinely	  

difficult	   for	   a	   multi-‐national	   corporation	   to	   identify	   exactly	   where	   it	   should	   be	  

allocating	   its	  profit	  and	   therefore	  paying	   tax.31	  Because	  a	  corporation’s	  ability	   to	  

derive	  profit	  from	  a	  global	  operation	  may	  rely	  on	  the	  different	  benefits	  offered	  by	  

different	  countries,	  allocating	  tax	  to	  just	  one	  jurisdiction	  would	  be	  arbitrary.	  

	  

Secondly,	   multi-‐national	   corporations	   can,	   and	   will,	   exploit	   gaps	   in	   the	  

international	   tax	   system	  to	  allocate	  profits	   to	   the	  most	  generous	   tax	  authorities	  

using	   a	   range	   of	   initiatives	   including	   transfer	   pricing	   and	   other	   intra-‐group	  

financial	   transactions.32	  There	  are	  approximately	  40	   tax	  havens	  across	   the	  world	  

and	   they	   host	   a	   disproportionate	   amount	   of	   the	   world’s	   foreign	   direct	  

investment.33	  

	  

In	  November	  2012	  by	  the	  appearance	  of	  Amazon,	  Google	  and	  Starbucks	  (amongst	  

others)	  in	  front	  of	  the	  Public	  Accounts	  Select	  Committee	  indicated	  the	  scale	  of	  the	  

problem.	  Despite	  having	  more	  than	  7,000	  staff	   in	  the	  UK	  working	  from	  over	  800	  

stores	  and	  recording	  £3.1	  billion	   in	  sales	  during	  that	  time,	  Starbucks	  was	  alleged	  

to	  have	  paid	  just	  £8.6	  million	  in	  tax	  according	  to	  the	  Guardian.34	  This	  is	  in	  contrast	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
31	  ‘Business	   Taxation	   in	   a	  Globalized	  World’,	   Oxford	   Review	   of	   Economic	   Policy,	   Vol	   24,	  No.4,	   pp.	  
625-‐638,	  Michael	  Devereux,	  2008	  
32 	  ‘Addressing	   Base	   Erosion	   and	   Profit	   Shifting’	   Organisation	   for	   Economic	   Co-‐operation	   and	  
Development,	  2013	  
33	  ‘What	  problems	  and	  opportunities	  are	  created	  by	  tax	  havens?’	  Oxford	  Review	  of	  Economic	  Policy,	  
Vol	  24,	  No	  4,	  pp.	  661-‐679,	  Dhammika	  Dharmapala,	  2008	  
34	  ‘Amazon,	  Google	  and	  Starbucks	  accused	  of	  diverting	  UK	  profits’,	  The	  Guardian,	  Rajeev	  Syal,	  12th	  
November	  2012	  



ATCM	  Consultation	  Response:	  Business	  Rates	  Review	   24 

to	  competitor	  Costa	  Coffee	  who	  had	  paid	  nearly	  double	  that	  amount	  for	  just	  2011	  

alone.35	  

	  

Google	  was	  accused	  of	  recording	  £2.5	  billion	  in	  UK	  sales	  in	  2011	  alone	  but	  paying	  

only	   £3.4	  million	   in	   tax,	   channelling	   non-‐US	   sales	   through	   Ireland	   and	   diverting	  

profits	  to	  Bermuda.36	  	  

	  

Finally,	  Amazon	  was	  accused	  of	   achieving	  £3.3	  billion	   in	   sales	   in	   the	  UK	   in	  2011	  

but	  paying	  no	  Corporation	  Tax,	  allocating	  its	  profits	  to	  Luxemburg.37	  These	  are	  just	  

the	  high	  profile	  examples	  but	  other	  companies	  have	  also	  been	  accused	  of	  similar	  

tax	  avoiding	  practices.	  	  

	  

The	  Emergence	  of	  Tax	  Competition	  	  

These	   gaps	   in	   the	   tax	   system	   are	   leading	   to	   tax	   competition	   between	   nations.	  

Corporation	   Tax	   rates	   have	   fallen	   across	   the	   OECD	   from	   an	   average	   of	   47%	   to	  

27.5%	   between	   1982	   and	   2007.38	  In	   2007,	   the	   tax	   rate	   was	   an	   average	   of	   10%	  

lower	  across	  the	  EU	  than	  it	  was	  in	  1982.	  And,	  by	  2008,	  every	  country	  in	  the	  OECD	  

had	  reduced	  its	  tax	  rate	  within	  the	  past	  25	  years.	  This	  year,	  the	  UK	  has	  dropped	  

the	  main	  tax	  rate	  to	  20%	  in	  order	  to	  remain	  competitive.	  While	  a	  competitive	  tax	  

rate	   is	   welcomed,	   this	   particular	   tax	   structure	   has	   triggered	   a	   universally	  

damaging	  race	  to	  the	  bottom.	  

	  

It	  has	  been	  established	   that	  between	  1982	  and	  2007,	   large	  countries	   (who	   tend	  

not	  host	   tax	  havens)	   have	   supplemented	  decreasing	   tax	   revenue	  by	  broadening	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
35	  ‘A	  highly	  taxing	  session	  for	  the	  men	  from	  Amazon,	  Google	  and	  Starbucks’,	  The	  Guardian,	  Simon	  
Hoggart,	  12th	  November	  2012	  
36	  ‘Amazon,	  Google	  and	  Starbucks	  accused	  of	  diverting	  UK	  profits’,	  Rajeev	  Syal,	  The	  Guardian,	  12th	  
November	  2012	  
37	  ‘Britain's	  missing	  billions:	  counting	  the	  true	  cost	  of	  corporate	  tax	  avoidance’,	  The	  Independent,	  
22nd	  November	  2012 
38	  ‘Corporate	  taxation	  in	  the	  OECD	  in	  a	  wider	  context’,	  Oxford	  Review	  of	  Economic	  Policy,	  Vol	  24,	  No	  
4,	  pp.	  639-‐660,	  Simon	  Loretz,	  2008	  



ATCM	  Consultation	  Response:	  Business	  Rates	  Review	   25 

their	  tax	  bases.39	  However,	  we	  may	  have	  reached	  a	  point	  where	  governments	  are	  

finding	   it	  difficult	   to	  broaden	   the	   tax	  base	  any	   further,	   as	   this	  has	  been	   slowing	  

amongst	   OECD	   nations	   for	   the	   past	   15	   years.40	  This	  means	   this	   tax	   competition	  

may	  have	  started	  impacting	  the	  ability	  of	  governments	  to	  pay	  for	  public	  services	  

within	  the	  last	  ten	  years.	  

	  

It	   is	   this	   trend	   within	   tax	   systems	   across	   the	   globe	   that	   have	   been	   concerning	  

academics	   for	   a	   considerable	   amount	   of	   time.	   In	   ‘Property	   Taxation,	   Nash	  

Equilibrium,	  and	  Market	  Power’	  by	  Hoyt,	  in	  the	  Journal	  of	  Urban	  Economics,	  it	  was	  

concluded	   that	   tax	   competition	   leads	   to	   an	   inefficiently	   low	   tax	   rate.41	  Others	  

have	  gone	  further.	  	  Bucovetsky	  in	  ‘Asymmetric	  Tax	  Competition’	  which	  appears	  in	  

the	   Journal	   of	   Urban	   Economics	   and	  Wilson	   in	   ‘Tax	   Competition	   with	   Two	   Tax	  

Instruments’	  which	   appears	   in	   the	  Regional	   Science	   and	  Urban	   Economics,	   both	  

argue	  that	  tax	  competition	   induces	  a	  shift	  towards	   less	  mobile	  capital.42	  43	  Based	  

on	  a	  detailed	  comparison	  of	   rates	   for	  Corporation	  Tax	  and	  Personal	   Income	  Tax	  

across	  the	  globe,	  Simon	  Loretz	  concluded	  that	  there	   is	  a	  direct	   link	  between	  the	  

inability	  of	  governments	   to	  sustain	  Corporation	  Tax	  revenue	  and	  a	  shift	   towards	  

high	  taxes	  on	  consumption	  and	  property.	  

	  

This	   knowledge,	   brought	   forward	   by	   academics	   in	   peer	   reviewed	   publications	  

leads	   ATCM	   to	   make	   the	   following	   observations	   which	   HM	   Treasury	   should	  

consider	  in	  the	  context	  of	  tax	  reform:	  

	  

1. The	  mobility	   of	   capital,	   as	   demonstrated	   by	   the	   loss	   of	   Corporation	   Tax	  

revenue,	  may	  be	  a	   contributory	   reason	  why	   the	  UK,	   Scottish	  and	  Welsh	  

governments	  have	  been	  inflexible	  in	  reforming	  the	  Business	  Rates	  system	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
39	  ibid	  
40	  ibid	  
41	  Property	  Taxation,	  Nash	  Equilibrium,	  and	  Market	  Power’,	  Journal	  of	  Urban	  Economics,	  Vol	  34,	  pp.	  
123-‐31.	  	  WH	  Hoyt,	  1991 
42	  ‘Asymmetric	  Tax	  Competition’	  Journal	  of	  Urban	  Economics,	  Vol	  30,	  pp.	  167-‐81,	  S	  Bucovetsky,	  1991	  
43	  ‘Tax	  Competition	  with	  Two	  Tax	  Instruments’,	  Regional	  Science	  and	  Urban	  Economics,	  Vol	  21,	  pp.	  
333-‐50,	  J	  Wilson,	  1991	  



ATCM	  Consultation	  Response:	  Business	  Rates	  Review	   26 

as	  property	  is	  a	  fixed	  asset	  and	  cannot	  be	  shifted	  in	  the	  same	  way	  profits	  

can.	  

	  

2. The	  problem	  is	  not	  a	  British	  one,	  but	   is	  an	  international	  one	  with	  the	  US	  

and	   much	   of	   the	   EU	   experiencing	   the	   same	   challenges.	   Despite	   the	  

devolved	  Business	  Rates	   systems	  across	   the	  UK,	   long-‐term	  solutions	  will	  

need	  dialogue	  both	  across	  the	  UK	  and	  internationally.	  

	  

3. It	  is	  not	  accurate	  to	  claim	  high	  profile	  retail	  failures	  are	  caused	  entirely	  by	  

market	   forces.	   Not	   only	   are	   high	   street	   businesses	   like	   HMV	   and	  

Waterstones	   paying	   excessively	   high	   Business	   Rates,	   but	   in	   some	   cases	  

they	  are	  paying	  them	  to	  subsidise	  the	  tax	  not	  being	  paid	  by	  direct	  online	  

competitors.	   This	   is	   a	   significant	   distortion	   that	   is	   neither	   fair,	   nor	  

supportive	   of	   the	   balanced	   economy	   desired	   by	   businesses	   and	   the	  

communities	  that	  rely	  on	  them.	  	  

	  

The	  Future	  for	  Urban	  Regeneration,	  the	  UK	  Economy	  and	  Public	  Services	  	  

There	   is	   one	   further	   implication	   that	   is	   perhaps	   the	   most	   worrying	   of	   all.	   It	  

appears	   that	   traditional	   retail	   bears	   the	   brunt	   of	   these	   shifts	   in	   the	   tax	   system.	  

Property	  and	  consumption	  are	  at	  the	  very	  core	  of	  the	  traditional	  retail	  operation.	  

However,	  in	  the	  longer-‐term	  retail	  will	  not	  be	  the	  only	  victim.	  

	  

If	  we	  are	  locked	  to	  a	  tax	  system	  that	  has	  to	  deliver	  maximum	  revenue	  from	  fixed	  

assets	  then	  question	  marks	  have	  to	  be	  placed	  on	  the	  viability	  of	  all	  businesses	  that	  

rely	   on	   fixed	   assets	   including	   the	   restaurants,	   cafes,	   hospitality	   functions	   and	  

leisure	  facilities	  that	  may	  emerge	  to	  replace	  retail	  in	  town	  centres.	  Some	  of	  these	  

businesses	   may	   prove	   more	   resilient	   than	   retail	   because	   their	   offer	   cannot	   be	  

replicated	   online.	   However,	   a	   relentless	   pressure	   on	   profit	   margins,	   led	   by	   an	  

extremely	   high	   property	   tax,	   will	   erode	   viability.	   Furthermore,	   if	   property	  

continues	   to	   be	   the	   target	   of	   high	   taxation	   to	   compensate	   for	   a	   loss	   of	   tax	  



ATCM	  Consultation	  Response:	  Business	  Rates	  Review	   27 

revenue	  elsewhere,	  then	  all	  urban	  regeneration	  and	  place-‐making	  activities	  could	  

be	   negatively	   affected.	   This	   topic	   is	   presented	   as	   being	   focused	   on	   high	   street	  

retail,	   but	   this	   may	   be	   just	   the	   tip	   of	   the	   iceberg.	   Retail	   may	   only	   serve	   as	   a	  

barometer	  of	  what	  is	  to	  come	  for	  other	  business	  activities.	  	  

	  

At	   risk	   is	   our	   ability	   to	   maintain	   an	   equitable	   ratio	   of	   commercial	   property	   to	  

satisfy	   a	   growing	   population.	   These	   tax	   trends	   throw	   into	   doubt	   our	   ability	   to	  

nurture	  diverse,	  mixed-‐use	  town	  centres	  with	  a	  range	  of	  activities	   that	  generate	  

employment	   and	  provide	   the	   foundation	   for	   sustainable	   communities.	   	  Without	  

this	  we	   have	   to	   call	   into	   question	   the	   quality	   of	   life	   for	  many	   areas	  which	  may	  

suffer	   restricted	   access	   to	  products,	   services	   and	  employment,	   surrounded	  by	   a	  

decaying	   urban	   landscape	   too	   expensive	   to	   invest	   in.	   The	   commercial	   property	  

market	  will	  also	  be	  left	  exposed	  and	  in	  danger	  of	  collapse.	  

	  

One	  area	  ATCM	  has	  not	  explored	  is	  the	  potential	  impact	  on	  sectors	  that	  pay	  rates	  

that	   are	   not	   linked	   immediately	   to	   town	   centres.	   If	   falls	   in	   retail	   rental	   values	  

under	   a	   revenue	   neutral	   system	   shift	   liability	   to	   other	   sectors	   following	   a	  

revaluation	  then	  it	  is	  important	  for	  HM	  Treasury	  to	  understand	  the	  consequences	  

on	   other	   key	   areas	   of	   the	   economy	   such	   as	   manufacturing,	   which	   itself	   is	  

undergoing	   a	   revolution	   in	   digital	   technology	   with	   new	   production	   practices.	  

Failure	   to	   modernise	   the	   business	   tax	   regime	   could	   affect	   the	   entire	  

competitiveness	   of	   the	   UK	   economy.	   And	   finally,	   there	   are	   the	   long-‐term	  

implications	  for	  the	  funding	  of	  public	  services.	  

	  

A	   modern	   business	   tax	   system	   is	   needed.	   A	   tax	   system	   that	   both	   in	   terms	   of	  

mobile	   capital	   (like	   profit)	   and	   immobile	   capital	   (like	   property),	   targets	   real	  

economic	   activity	   to	   provide	   the	   country	   with	   a	   sustainable	   future	   and	   better	  

prospects	  for	  economic	  development.	  	  

	  



ATCM	  Consultation	  Response:	  Business	  Rates	  Review	   28 

Such	  reforms	  need	  not	  be	  about	  government	  reducing	  its	  income.	  If	  business	  tax	  

is	   considered	   holistically	   then	   reforms	   that	   are	   fair	   and	   fiscally	   neutral	   become	  

possible.	   While	   this	   potentially	   represents	   a	   significant	   departure	   from	   our	  

existing	  tax	  system,	  retaining	  the	  current	  system	  is	  clearly	  not	  a	  viable	  option.	  

	  

These	  views	  are	  already	  shared	  by	  a	  number	  of	   influential	  parliamentarians	  who	  

have	  considered	  these	  issues	  in	  detail.	  The	  Public	  Accounts	  Select	  Committee	  has	  

been	   vocal	   about	   the	   problems	   of	   Corporation	   Tax	   and	   the	   need	   to	   tackle	  

aggressive	  tax	  planning.	  	  

	  

The	  BIS	  Select	  Committee	  recommended	  this	  review	  of	  Business	  Rates	  favouring	  

modernisation	  in	  recognition	  that	  the	  tax	  is	  no	  longer	  fit	  for	  purpose,	  especially	  in	  

relation	  to	  the	  retail	  sector.	  

	  

The	  most	  important	  endorsement	  yet	  comes	  from	  the	  Chancellor	  who	  has	  openly	  

acknowledged	  a	  problem	  and	  promised	  action,	  saying:	  

	  

“The	  UK	  has	  a	  sophisticated	  digital	  marketplace	  with	   the	  highest	  global	  average	  

online	   spend	   per	   capita	   by	   e-‐consumers.	   But	   with	   these	   opportunities	   we	   have	  

seen	  new	  problems	  too	  when	  it	  comes	  to	  making	  sure	  companies	  are	  paying	  their	  

fair	   share	   of	   tax.	   Aggressive	   tax	   planning	   by	   some	   digital	   businesses	   has	   given	  

them	  an	  unfair	  advantage	  over	  their	  competitors.	  The	  ability	  of	  some	  companies	  

to	   deliver	   products	   and	   services	   into	   a	   market,	   without	   the	   need	   to	   physically	  

locate	  there,	  means	  that	  under	  current	  rules	  they	  can	  pay	  little	  or	  no	  tax	  on	  profits	  

made	  in	  the	  UK.	  That	  is	  unfair	  and	  wrong.”	  44	  

	  

Since	  these	  comments,	   the	  UK	  Government	  has	  pledged	  to	   introduce	  a	  Diverted	  

Profits	  Tax	  to	  help	  resolve	  the	  problem	  of	  aggressive	  tax	  planning.	  Although	   it	   is	  

too	  early	  to	  comment	  on	  the	  success	  of	   legislation	   in	  this	  area,	  we	  welcome	  the	  
	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
44	  George	  Osborne,	  Chancellor	  of	  the	  Exchequer,	  Foreword	  in	  ‘Tackling	  Aggressive	  Tax	  Planning	  in	  
the	  Global	  Economy’	  HM	  Treasury	  &	  HMRC,	  March	  2014,	  Page	  3	  



ATCM	  Consultation	  Response:	  Business	  Rates	  Review	   29 

action	   being	   taken.	   We	   suggest	   that	   revenue	   captured	   from	   this,	   and	   through	  

other	  initiatives	  to	  tackle	  tax	  avoidance,	  are	  used	  as	  a	  basis	  to	  offset	  the	  excessive	  

taxes	  levied	  on	  occupiers	  and	  owners	  of	  property.	  

	   	  



ATCM	  Consultation	  Response:	  Business	  Rates	  Review	   30 

5.	  RECOMMENDATIONS	  FOR	  MODERNISING	  THE	  TAX	  SYSTEM	  

	  

In	   recognition	   that	   significant	   elements	   of	   our	   business	   tax	   system	   no	   longer	  

targets	   real	   economic	   activity,	   fundamental	   tax	   modernisation	   is	   needed	   to	  

safeguard	  our	   ability	   to	  both	  generate	   revenue	  and	   support	  businesses.	  We	  are	  

thankful	   for	   the	   Treasury’s	   commitment	   to	   review	   Business	   Rates,	   but	   reform	  

must	   be	   bold	   and	   must	   take	   into	   consideration	   modern	   business	   practices	   in	  

terms	  of	  the	  global	  flow	  of	  capital	  and	  the	  digital	  economy.	  	  

	  

As	  its	  overarching	  recommendation,	  ATCM	  proposes:	  

	  

1.	   The	   comprehensive	   modernisation	   of	   UK	   business	   taxation	   to	   ensure	   it	   is	  

suitably	  aligned	  with	  21st	  Century	  business	  practices	  and	  targets	  real	  economic	  

activity	   to	   support	  urban	   regeneration,	  UK	  commerce	  and	   secure	   the	   future	  of	  

public	  services.	  

	  

There	  are	  a	  number	  of	  options	  that	  have	  been	  discussed	  by	  the	  industry	  and	  our	  

members	   in	   relation	   to	   the	   transition	   of	   Business	   Rates.	   The	   advantages	   and	  

disadvantages	  of	  three	  particular	  ideas	  are	  discussed	  below.	  

	  

Remove	  a	  Government’s	  Ability	  to	  Manipulate	  the	  UBR	  

One	  potential	  mechanism	  for	  reform	  is	  to	  remove	  the	  ability	  of	  the	  Government	  

to	   reconfigure	   the	   UBR	   when	   a	   revaluation	   takes	   place.	   The	   benefit	   of	   this	  

alteration	   is	   a	   stable	   tax	   rate	   meaning	   tax	   liability	   will	   fluctuate	   for	   individual	  

businesses	  in	  line	  with	  property	  values,	  providing	  the	  foundation	  of	  a	  system	  that	  

is	  more	  responsive	  to	  the	  economic	  climate,	  ending	  revenue	  neutrality.	  

	  

Advantages:	   Linking	   rates	   to	   rental	   values	   allows	   rates	   to	   be	   linked	   with	   a	  

measure	  of	  economic	  performance.	  If	  rents	  go	  up,	  rates	  go	  up.	  If	  rents	  go	  down,	  

rates	  go	  down.	  This	  requires	  minimal	  changes	  to	  the	  existing	  system.	  



ATCM	  Consultation	  Response:	  Business	  Rates	  Review	   31 

	  

Disadvantages:	  The	  negative	  aspect	  of	  this	   is	  the	  retention	  of	  the	  same	  basic	  tax	  

system.	   Some	   feel	   this	   system	   is	   fundamentally	   flawed.	   Firstly,	   some	   believe	  

rental	  values	  are	  not	  a	  fair	  measure	  of	  the	  economic	  performance	  of	  businesses.	  

The	  Institute	  for	  Fiscal	  Studies	  has	  raised	  concerns	  that	  a	  tax	  on	  property	  is	  deeply	  

inefficient	   because	   of	   the	   way	   it	   distorts	   land-‐use.45	  The	   Institute	   states	   that	   if	  

property	  is	  subject	  to	  tax	  but	  land	  is	  not,	  then	  it	  creates	  an	  incentive	  for	  property	  

owners	  to	  demolish	  property	  that	  is	  difficult	  to	  let.	  There	  are	  also	  strong	  concerns	  

that	  any	  attempt	  to	  invest	  in	  property	  will	  be	  met	  with	  increased	  rateable	  values	  

which	   discourages	   essential	   modernisation.	   Finally,	   the	   burdensome	  

administration	  that	  weighs	  down	  the	  current	  system	  will	  continue	  with	  problems	  

for	  businesses,	  local	  billing	  authorities	  and	  the	  VOA.	  	  

	  

Replace	  Business	  Rates	  with	  a	  Tax	  on	  Land	  Value	  

The	  Institute	  for	  Fiscal	  Studies	  favours	  a	  move	  to	  a	  Land	  Value	  Tax	  system.	  Instead	  

of	  tax	  liability	  being	  linked	  to	  rental	  values,	  it	  would	  be	  linked	  to	  the	  value	  of	  the	  

land	  on	  which	  the	  property	  is	  located.	  

	  

Advantages	  

This	   is	   a	   clear	   departure	   from	   the	   existing,	   deeply	   flawed	   property	   tax.	   The	  

Institute	  for	  Fiscal	  Studies	  believes	  a	  Land	  Value	  Tax	  is	  designed	  to	  encourage	  the	  

better	   use	   of	   land.	   There	   are	   a	   number	   of	   very	   attractive	   elements	   about	   this	  

option	  which	  make	  it	  worth	  strong	  consideration.	  

	  

Firstly,	   the	   taxation	   of	   land,	   rather	   than	   property,	   moves	   us	   away	   from	   the	  

adverse	   system	   of	   increasing	   the	   rates	   bills	   for	   the	   owners	   and	   occupiers	   who	  

invest	  time	  and	  money	  in	  upgrading	  their	  units.	  With	  the	  digital	  revolution	  taking	  

place	   and	   growing	   concerns	   over	   energy	   efficiency,	   asset	   modernisation	   is	  

essential	   to	   retaining	   the	  UK’s	   investment	  potential,	  meeting	  our	  environmental	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
45	  ‘Tax	  by	  Design’,	  Institute	  for	  Fiscal	  Studies,	  2010	  



ATCM	  Consultation	  Response:	  Business	  Rates	  Review	   32 

obligations	  and	  protecting	  urban	  architecture.	   	  A	  Land	  Value	  Tax	  can	   incentivise	  

desirable	   investment	  by	  all	  users	  and	  owners	  of	  non-‐domestic	  property	  without	  

the	   need	   for	   a	   series	   of	   complicated	   relief	   packages,	   boosting	   brownfield	  

regeneration.	  

	  

Secondly,	  a	  Land	  Value	  Tax	  relies	  on	  shifting	  the	  burden	  of	  liability	  from	  occupiers	  

to	  owners.	   The	   costs	  will	   still	   get	   passed	  down	   to	   the	  occupiers	   (and	  ultimately	  

consumers	   in	   the	   case	   of	   retail	   businesses)	   meaning	   there	   is	   no	   tangible	  

difference	   in	  who	  eventually	  pays	   the	   tax.	  However,	   it	  brings	   land	  and	  property	  

owners	   formally	   into	   the	   tax	   system	  which	   has	  many	   advantages	   for	   long-‐term	  

engagement	   and	   capital	   investment	   opportunities.	   	   For	   example,	   our	   ability	   to	  

develop	   visionary	   property	   owner	   Business	   Improvement	   Districts	   would	   be	  	  

greatly	   improved	   as	   a	   Land	   Value	   Tax	  will	   provide	   the	   framework	   to	  make	   this	  

achievable.	  	  

	  

A	  Land	  Value	  Tax	  has	  the	  benefit	  of	  being	  compatible	  with	  all	  domestic	  and	  non-‐

domestic	   properties,	   whether	   they	   are	   owned	   publically	   or	   privately	   giving	   the	  

Government	  many	  options	  in	  terms	  of	  its	  implementation.	  

	  

Finally,	   there	  would	   be	   a	   departure	   from	   the	   need	   to	   assess	   the	   value	   of	   each	  

individual	   property	   like	   the	   VOA	   is	   required	   to	   do	   at	   the	   moment.	   This	   could	  

decrease	  administration	  costs	  and	  support	  more	  frequent	  revaluations.	  	  

	  

Disadvantages	  

This	  is	  very	  radical	  and	  would	  need	  to	  be	  thoroughly	  assessed	  for	  its	   impact,	  not	  

least	  on	  rural	  communities	  where	  protection	  of	  the	  natural	  environment	  may	  be	  

important	  but	  might	  not	  be	  economically	  productive	  under	  a	  Land	  Value	  Tax.	  	  

	  



ATCM	  Consultation	  Response:	  Business	  Rates	  Review	   33 

There	   may	   also	   be	   a	   suggestion	   that	   a	   Land	   Value	   Tax,	   would	   not	   produce	   a	  

regime	  that	   is	  based	  on	   the	  economic	  performance	  of	   individual	  businesses	  and	  

their	  ability	  to	  pay.	  	  

	  

Finally,	   it	   rests	   on	   having	   extensive	   knowledge	   of	   land	   and	   property	   ownership	  

which	  we	  currently	  do	  not.	  The	  Land	  Registry	  would	  need	  to	  be	  tasked	  with	  filling	  

any	  gaps	   in	  knowledge	  which	   is	  arguably	  an	   important	  goal	   in	   its	  own	   right	  and	  

financially	  feasible	  if	  the	  long-‐term	  costs	  of	  administration	  are	  reduced.	  

	  

Replace	  Business	  Rates	  with	  a	  Tax	  on	  Profitability	  or	  Turnover	  

It	  has	  been	  suggested	  that	  Business	  Rates	  should	  be	  abandoned,	  but	  not	  in	  favour	  

of	  a	  Land	  Value	  Tax,	  but	  a	  tax	  based	  on	  the	  profitability	  or	  turnover	  of	  individual	  

stores.	  	  

	  

Advantages	  

With	   accurate	   reporting	   to	   tax	   authorities,	   this	   would	   create	   a	   tax	   system	  

responsive	   to	   a	   businesses’	   ability	   to	   pay.	   This	   would	   allow	   businesses	   to	  

contribute	  more	  when	   they	   are	   growing	   but	   less	   during	   a	   recession,	   creating	   a	  

strong	  link	  to	  economic	  activity.	  Stores	  in	  more	  attractive	  and	  lucrative	  locations	  

achieving	  a	  higher	  volume	  and	  value	   in	  sales	  would	  pay	  more	  than	  stores	   in	   less	  

attractive	  locations.	  As	  a	  proportion	  of	  profitability	  or	  turnover,	  this	  tax	  would	  be	  

expected	  to	  support	  business	  survival	  much	  better	  than	  the	  current	  system.	  And,	  

such	   a	   tax	   could	   easily	   be	   expanded	   to	   include	   digital	   retail	   and	   services,	  

broadening	  the	  tax	  base	  and	  reducing	  the	  burden	  for	  individual	  businesses.	  

	  

Disadvantages	  

This	  alteration	  could	  not	  be	  applicable	  to	  all	  non-‐domestic	  property	  and	  may	  only	  

work	   for	   the	   consumer-‐facing	   industries	  where	   sales	   are	   actually	  made,	   such	  as	  

retail	   and	   leisure.	   It	   would	   be	   impossible	   to	   implement	   for	   offices,	   the	   public	  

sector	  or	  manufacturing	  which	  would	  require	  an	  entirely	  different	  system.	  	  



ATCM	  Consultation	  Response:	  Business	  Rates	  Review	   34 

	  

Furthermore,	   problems	   would	   exist	   in	   the	   governance	   of	   such	   a	   tax	   system,	  

especially	   for	   retail	   if	   there	  was	  a	  difference	   in	   the	   tax	   rate	  between	  stores	  and	  

online.	   As	   companies	  move	   to	  m-‐commerce	   and	  multi-‐channel	   business	  models	  

there	  is	  no	  certainty	  that	  tax	  authorities	  would	  be	  able	  to	  allocate	  sales	  to	  specific	  

stores	  even	   though	  a	  particular	   store	  may	  have	  played	  an	   important	   role	   in	   the	  

purchasing	  process.	  We	  could	  end	  up	  with	  a	  situation	  similar	  to	  Corporation	  Tax	  

where	   larger	   companies	   with	   sophisticated	   operations	   can	   allocate	   sales	  

accordingly	  to	  minimise	  their	  exposure	  to	  the	  tax,	  leaving	  other	  businesses	  to	  pick	  

up	  the	  bill.	  This	  could	  potentially	  be	  alleviated	  by	  basing	   it	  on	  the	  destination	  of	  

the	  sale.	  

	  

There	  are	  valid	  ideas	  here,	  but	  admittedly,	  no	  perfect	  option.	  For	  ATCM,	  the	  best	  

course	  of	  action	  is	  to	  outline	  the	  most	  important	  features	  we	  would	  want	  to	  see	  

incorporated	   into	   a	   new	   tax	   system	   and	   then	   work	   with	   HM	   Treasury	   and	   the	  

industry	  to	  find	  the	  most	  adequate	  solution.	  

	  

These	   first	   three	  principles	   are	   inevitably	   designed	   to	   rebalance	   the	   tax	   system,	  

alleviating	  the	  pressure	  on	  those	  who	  rely	  on	  non-‐domestic	  property.	  

	  

ATCM	  recommends:	  

	  

2.	   Any	   tax	   on	   commercial	   property,	   land,	   or	   otherwise,	   that	   either	   revises	   or	  

completely	   replaces	   Business	   Rates	   must	   accurately	   reflect	   the	   value	   of	   the	  

activity	  or	  asset	  being	  taxed	   from	  the	  outset,	  and	  adjust	   to	  shifts	   in	  value	   in	  a	  

timely	  manner	  thereafter.	  

	  

3.	  The	  inevitable	  drop	  in	  revenue	  from	  the	  current,	  unsustainable	  levels	  of	  tax	  on	  

property	   should	   be	   offset	   by	   revenue	   derived	   from	   the	   Diverted	   Profits	   Tax	  

and/or	   other	  measures	   introduced	   to	   tackle	   aggressive	   tax	   planning,	   allowing	  



ATCM	  Consultation	  Response:	  Business	  Rates	  Review	   35 

for	   fiscal	   neutrality	   and	   ending	   distortion	   in	   sectors	   that	   are	   reliant	   on	   both	  

physical	  and	  virtual	  environments.	  

	  

4.	  Without	  full	  fiscal	  devolution	  across	  the	  UK,	  revenue	  captured	  from	  successful	  

attempts	  to	  tackle	  aggressive	  tax	  planning	  should	  not	  only	  be	  allocated	  across	  

England	  to	  alleviate	  Business	  Rates	  (or	  any	  alternative	  tax)	  but	  also	  apportioned	  

to	  other	  nations	  in	  the	  UK	  for	  the	  same	  purposes.	  Careful	  consideration	  must	  be	  

given	  to	  Northern	  Ireland	  following	  the	  devolution	  of	  Corporation	  Tax.	  

	  

Changes	  to	  local	  government	  finance	  need	  to	  be	  carefully	  considered.	  Funding	  for	  

local	  services	  are	  greatly	  dependent	  upon	  Business	  Rates.	  If	  the	  rates	  system	  is	  to	  

be	  modernised,	   and	  we	   can	   assume	   that	   such	   a	  modernisation	  would	   lead	   to	   a	  

drop	   in	   rates	   liability	   for	  most	  businesses,	   then	   funding	   for	   local	   services	  would	  

need	  some	  form	  of	  alteration.	  Councils	  must	  be	  adequately	  compensated	  if	  such	  a	  

change	  were	   to	   take	  place.	   The	  well-‐being	  and	  quality	  of	   life	  of	   a	   community	   is	  

not	   just	   dictated	   by	   the	   commercial	   vibrancy	   of	   the	   town	   centre	   but	   also	   the	  

quality	  of	  the	  public	  services	  on	  offer.	  	  

	  

ATCM	  recommends:	  

	  

5.	   Careful	   consideration	   is	   given	   to	   local	   government	   financing	   should	   any	  

significant	   revision	   of	   Business	   Rates	   take	   place	   to	   ensure	   local	   services	   are	  

adequately	  funded.	  

	  

Furthermore,	   consideration	  may	  need	   to	  be	  given	  both	  nationally	   and	   locally	   to	  

the	  way	  Business	  Improvement	  Districts	  (BIDs)	  are	  funded.	  Like	  councils,	  funding	  

for	  BIDs	  is	  linked	  to	  Business	  Rates.	  It	  is	  clear	  that	  the	  introduction	  of	  BIDs	  to	  the	  

framework	   of	   economic	   development	   has	   been	   a	   success	   in	   galvanising	  

businesses	  around	  high	  street	  improvement	  and	  the	  pooling	  and	  coordination	  of	  



ATCM	  Consultation	  Response:	  Business	  Rates	  Review	   36 

private	  sector	  investment.	  It	  would	  be	  self-‐defeating	  to	  town	  centres	  if	  changes	  to	  

Business	  Rates	  	  unintentionally	  harmed	  BIDs.	  	  

	  

Therefore,	  ATCM	  recommends	  that:	  

	  

6.	  The	   impact	  of	  changes	   to	   the	  Business	  Rates	  system	  on	  BIDs	   funding	   is	   fully	  

understood	  prior	  to	  alterations	  being	  made	  and	  all	  necessary	  steps	  are	  taken	  to	  

ensure	   businesses	   are	   able	   to	   adequately	   invest	   in	   BIDs	   regardless	   of	   these	  

alterations.	  

	  

The	   pressure	   on	   council	   budgets	   for	   non-‐statutory	   services	   has	   seen	   local	  

government	   slowly	  withdraw	   from	   local	   economic	   development.	   However,	   they	  

remain	   important	   players	   in	   fostering	   the	   conditions	   that	   allow	   a	   business	  

community	   to	   flourish.	   Rates	   were	   once	   perceived	   as	   a	   contribution	   towards	  

supporting	   that	   effort	   and	   it	   is	   important	   that	  whatever	   the	   changes	   to	   the	   tax	  

system,	   some	   of	   the	   revenue	   collected	   locally	   is	   reinvested	   to	   sustain	   our	  	  

economic	  growth.	  

	  

7.	  A	  proportion	  of	  the	  tax	  revenue	  derived	  from	  commercial	  locations	  should	  be	  

ring-‐fenced	   and	   reinvested	   back	   into	   local	   economic	   development	   through	  

various	  channels	  decided	  locally	  such	  as	  partnership	  capacity	  building,	  business	  

support	  or	  infrastructure	  investment.	  

	  

Any	  revisions	  to	  the	  tax	  system	  must	  encourage	  the	  private,	  public	  and	  voluntary	  

sectors	   to	  actually	   invest	   in	  urban	   regeneration.	   Steep	   increases	   to	  already	  high	  

rateable	   values	   following	   improvements	   to	  property	  do	  not	   reward	   the	   renewal	  

and	   upgrade	   of	   units	   to	   ensure	   they	   meet	   21st	   Century	   business	   and	   societal	  

needs.	  Upgrading	  existing	  physical	  assets	  to	  cope	  with	  modern	  demands	  such	  as	  

accommodating	   digital	   infrastructure,	   contemporary	   retail	   practices	   or	   energy	  



ATCM	  Consultation	  Response:	  Business	  Rates	  Review	   37 

efficiency	   is	   currently	   discouraged,	   creating	   demand	   for	   developing	   new	  

commercial	  property	  on	  greenfield	  sites.	  

	  

8.	  The	   tax	   system	  must	   incentivise	   the	  private,	  public	  and	  voluntary	   sectors	   to	  

invest	  in	  the	  upgrade	  of	  existing	  property	  assets	  to	  boost	  urban	  regeneration	  on	  

brownfield	  sites	  and	  encourage	  a	  more	  productive	  use	  of	  land.	  

	  

Our	   smallest	   businesses	   are	   vital	   to	   future	   economic	   growth,	   innovation	   and	  

employment.	   Taking	   the	   smallest	   businesses	   out	   of	   the	   tax	   system	  would	   be	   a	  

huge	  step	  towards	  lowering	  the	  barriers	  to	  entry	  into	  sector.	  

	  

We	  think	  there	  is	  a	  strong	  fiscal	  rationale	  for	  this.	  Figures	  from	  HMRC	  suggest	  that	  

the	   distribution	   of	   rateable	   value	   is	   highly	   skewed	  with	   only	   20%	   of	   properties	  

with	   a	   rateable	   value	   above	   £25,000	   yet	   accounting	   for	   82%	   of	   the	   aggregate	  

rateable	   value46.	   This	   suggests	   that,	   the	   tax	   contribution	   of	   those	   businesses	   at	  

the	  very	  bottom	  of	  the	  scale	  may	  be	  small	  enough	  to	  be	  affordable	  when	  the	  cost	  

of	  collection,	  appeals	  and	  general	  administration	  is	  taken	  into	  account.	  

	  

Furthermore,	   these	   figures	   do	   not	   take	   into	   account	   small	   business	   rates	   relief	  

that	   has	   been	   in	   place	   for	   a	   number	  of	   years,	   demonstrating	   the	  Government’s	  

intent	   to	  support	   the	  smallest	  businesses	  already.	  Whatever	   reform	  takes	  place,	  

regardless	   of	   other	   changes	   to	   Business	   Rates,	  we	   believe	   that	   this	   support	   for	  

small	  businesses	  must	  now	  be	  made	  permanent.	  

	  

ATCM	  recommends	  that	  the:	  

	  

9.	  The	  smallest	  businesses	  should	  be	  taken	  out	  of	   the	  tax	  system	  altogether,	   if	  

possible,	  to	  support	  sustainable	  economic	  growth,	  innovation	  and	  employment.	  

	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
46	  Stuart	  Adam	  and	  Helen	  Miller,	  Institute	  of	  Fiscal	  Studies,	  Green	  Budget,	  February	  2014	  



ATCM	  Consultation	  Response:	  Business	  Rates	  Review	   38 

During	  the	  recession	  we	  have	  seen	  a	  huge	  trend	  in	  charity	  shops	  relocating	  from	  

secondary	   and	   tertiary	   areas	   in	   town	   centres	   to	   occupy	   prime	   retail	   space.	  Our	  

members	  agree	  that	  it	  is	  far	  more	  desirable	  to	  see	  these	  units	  being	  occupied	  by	  

charities	  than	  to	  see	  them	  empty.	  We	  therefore	  argue	  that	  tax	  relief	  for	  charities	  

must	  be	  retained	   in	  some	  form.	  However,	   their	  clustering,	   long-‐term	  occupation	  

of	  the	  most	  valuable	  property	  assets	  as	  we	  resolve	  the	  structural	  problems	  of	  our	  

town	   centres	   and	   their	   competitive	   impact	   on	   private	   businesses	   that	   do	   not	  

benefit	  from	  rate	  relief	  are	  all	  concerns.	  We	  urge	  the	  Government	  to	  redesign	  tax	  

relief	  to	  avoid	  clustering	  and	  support	  business	  survival.	  

	  

ATCM	  recommends	  that:	  

	  

10.	   Charity	   retail	   tax	   relief	   should	   be	   retained,	   but	   reformed	   to	   prevent	   large	  

scale	  clustering,	  and	  direct	  competition	  with	  ratepayers.	  

	  






	Agenda
	2 Colli swyddi ar raddfa fawr
	EBC(4)-17-15 p.1 Cyflwyniad ysgrifenedig gan Murco - Gwerthusiad o broses cau ac ymdrin â diswyddiadau ym Mhurfa Olew Murco yn Aberdaugleddau (Saesneg yn unig)
	EBC(4)-17-15 p.2 Murco - ystadegau (Saesneg yn unig)

	3 Colli swyddi ar raddfa fawr
	EBC(4)-17-15 p.4 Undeb Unite (Saesneg yn unig)

	4 Colli swyddi ar raddfa fawr
	6.1 Buddsoddi ar y Cyd mewn Sgiliau
	EBC(4)-17-15 p.7 Comisiwn y DU dros Gyflogaeth a Sgiliau, Adroddiad Cymru 2013 a ddarparwyd gan y Dirprwy Weinidog Sgiliau a Thechnoleg

	6.2 Polisi Ardrethi Busnes - Gwybodath a ddarparwyd gan yr Association of Town and City Management
	8 Blaenraglen Waith ar gyfer yr hydref.
	9 Ymchwiliad i’r Seilwaith Rheilffyrdd yng Nghymru -  Papur Cwmpasu

